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This version of our report is a free translation of the original, which was prepared in Spanish. All possible
care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of the original. However, in
all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original language version of our report
takes precedence over this translation.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE ANNUALS ACCOUNTS
To the Shareholders of Banco Santander, S.A.:
Report on the Annual Accounts

We have audited the accompanying annual accounts of Banco Santander, S.A. (hereinafter, the
Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2016, and the income statement,
statement of recognized income and expense, statement of changes in total equity, statement of cash
flows and notes to the financial statements for the year then ended.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Annual Accounts

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of these annual accounts, so that they
present fairly the equity, financial position and financial performance of Banco Santander, S.A., in
accordance with the financial reporting framework applicable to the entity in Spain, as identified in
Note 1.b to the accompanying annual accounts, and for such internal control as directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual accounts based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with legislation governing the audit practice in Spain. This legislation requires
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the annual accounts are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the annual accounts. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's
directors' preparation of the annual accounts in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
presentation of the annual accounts taken as a whole.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts present fairly, in all material respects, the equity
and the financial position of Banco Santander, S.A. as at December 31, 2016, and its results and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the applicable financial reporting frameworlk,
and in particular, with the accounting principles and criteria included therein.
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Other matters

The Company financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 were audited by the
predecessor auditor who issued a favourable opinion on February 12, 2016.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The accompanying directors’ Report for 2016 contains the explanations which the Company's directors
consider appropriate regarding the Banco Santander, S.A. situation, the development of their business
and other matters and does not form an integral part of annual accounts. We have verified that the
accounting information contained in the directors' Report is in agreement with that of the annual
accounts for 2016. Our work as auditors is limited to checking the directors’ Report in accordance with
the scope mentioned in this paragraph and does not include a review of information other than that
obtained from Banco Santander, S.A. accounting records.
/

Pricewaterhouse@6opers Agdito'fes, S.L.
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Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and
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the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.



Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Bank in Spain (see Notes 1 and
50). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

BANCO SANTANDER, S.A.

BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015
(Millions of euros)

ASSETS Note 2016 2015 (*)
CASH, CASH BALANCES AT CENTRAL BANKS AND OTHERS DEPOSITS ON DEMAND 15,635 14,159
FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING 70,437 79,474
Derivatives 9 45,258 51,544
Equity instruments 8 7,249 8,300
Debt instruments 7 17,889 19,595
Loans and advances 10 41 35
Central banks - -
Credit institutions - -
Customers 41 35
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 31 8,272 11,114
FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 25,269 39,439
Equity instruments 8 - -
Debt instruments 7 - -
Loans and advances 25,269 39,439
Central banks - -
Credit institutions 6 8,533 21,370
Customers 10 16,736 18,069
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 31 308 10,625
FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 30,068 35,967
Equity instruments 8 2,443 1,505
Debt instruments 7 27,625 34,462
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 31 9,991 16,276
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 218,288 227,065
Debt instruments 7 13,681 16,827
Loans and advances 204,607 210,238
Central banks 6 47 48
Credit institutions 6 25,763 28,213
Customers 10 178,797 181,977
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 31 3,514 3,233
INVESTMENTS HELD-TO-MATURITY 7 1,953 2,013
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 31 449 -
HEDGING DERIVATIVES 11 2,283 3,146
CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLIO HEDGES
OF INTEREST RATE RISK 32 84 95
INVESTMENTS 80,614 80,822
Group entities 13 78,057 79,744
Joint ventures entities 390 356
Associated companies 13 2,167 722
TANGIBLE ASSETS 15 1,834 1,781
Property, plant and equipment: 1,616 1,570
For own use 1,299 1,273
Leased out under an operating lease 317 297
Investment property: 218 211
Of which: Leased out under an operating lease 200 198
Memorandum items:acquired in financial lease 611 528
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 160 85
Goodwill - -
Other intangible assets 16 160 85
TAX ASSETS 24 9,586 9,343
Current tax assets 1,378 1,509
Deferred tax assets 8,208 7,834
OTHER ASSETS 17 3,110 3,047
Insurance contracts linked to pensions 14 1,834 1,924
Inventories - -
Other 1,276 1,123
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 12 1,923 1,838
TOTAL ASSETS 461,244 498,274

(*) Restated Balances. Presented for comparison purposes only. See Note 1.d.
The accompanying Notes 1 to 50 and Appendices are an integral part of the balance sheet as at 31 December 2016.




Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Bank in Spain (see

50). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

BANCO SANTANDER, S.A.

BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

(Millions of euros)

Notes 1 and

LIABILITIES Note 2016 2015 (%)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING 54,550 58,497
Derivatives 9 46,975 51,498
Short positions 9 7,575 6,999
Deposits - -
Central banks - -
Credit institutions - -
Customers - -
Marketable debt securities - -
Other financial liabilities - -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 15,124 24,122
Deposits 15,124 24,122
Central banks 18 8,401 8,811
Credit institutions 18 3,141 9,494
Customers 19 3,582 5,817
Marketable debt securities - -
Other financial liabilities - -
Memorandum items:subordinated liabilities - -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST 313,382 339,709
Deposits 281,096 303,802
Central banks 18 25,067 25,835
Credit institutions 18 49,287 59,643
Customers 19 206,742 218,324
Marketable debt securities 20 22,955 26,735
Other financial liabilities 22 9,331 9,172
Memorandum items:subordinated liabilities 21 16,941 19,045
HEDGING DERIVATIVES 1 4,197 3,392
CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLIO HEDGES OF INTEREST RISK RATE 32 7 14
PROVISIONS 23 7,339 7,635
Provision for pensions and similar obligations 4,627 4,747
Other long term employee benefits 1,588 1,737
Provisions for taxes and other legal contingencies 262 217
Provisions for commitments and guarantees given 267 291
Other provisions 595 583
TAX LIABILITIES 24 1,378 1,124
Current tax liabilities - -
Deferred tax liabilities 1,378 1124
OTHER LIABILITIES 17 2,032 1,922
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 398,009 436,415
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 26 63,029 62,017
CAPITAL 7,291 7,217
Called up paid capital 27 7,291 7,217
Unpaid capital which has been called up - -
Memorandum items: uncalled up capital - -
SHARE PREMIUM 28 44,912 45,001
EQUITY INSTRUMENTS ISSUED OTHER THAN CAPITAL - -
Equity of financial i - -
Other equity instruments - -
OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 30 135 115
ACCUMULATED RETAINED EARNINGS 29 7,785 7,779
REVALUATION RESERVES - -
OTHER RESERVES 29 2,002 1174
(-) OWN SHARES - -
RESULTS FOR THE PERIOD 2,481 2,277
(-) DIVIDENDS 4 (1,667) (1,546)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 206 (158)
ITEMS NOT RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS (1,080) (1,006)
Actuarial gains or (-) losses on defined benefit pension plans 25 (1,080) (1,008)
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - -
Other valuation adjustments - -
ITEMS THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS 1,286 848
Hedge of net investments in foreign operations (Effective portion) - -
Exchange differences - -
Hedging derivatives. Cash flow hedges (Effective portion) 5 3
Financial assets available-for-sale 25 1,281 845
Debt instruments 636 677
Equity instruments 645 168
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - -
TOTAL EQUITY 63,235 61,859
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 461,244 498,274

MEMORANDUM ITEMS
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 60,059 62,061
CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS 31 85,250 81,004

(*) Restated Balances. Presented for comparison purposes only. See Note 1.d.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 50 and Appendices are an integral part of the balance sheet as at 31 December 2016




Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable
to the Bank in Spain (see Notes 1 and 50). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

BANCO SANTANDER, S.A.

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

(Millions of euros)

(Debit) / Credit
Note 2016 2015(*)

Interest income 34 5,763 6,643
Interest expense 35 (3,113) (3,582)
Net interest income 2,650 3,061
Dividend income 36 3,719 3,540
Commision income 37 2,035 2,002
Commision expense 38 (343) (354)
Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 39 289 631
Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading, net 39 310 168
Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 39 177 205
Gains or losses from hedge accounting, net 39 17 (24)
Exchange differences, net 40 (587) (312)
Other operating income 41 247 241
Other operating expenses 41 (462) (468)
Gross income 8,018 8,690
Administrative expenses (4,211) (4,365)
Staff costs 42 (2,154) (2,141)
Other general administrative expenses 43 (2,057) (2,224)
Depreciation and amortisation cost 15 &16 (160) (202)
Provisions or reversal of provision 23 (714) (221)
Impairment or reversal of impairment at financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net (560) (1,108)
Financial assets measured at cost (43) -
Financial assets available-for-sale 25 12 (106)
Loans and receivables 10 (529) (1,002)
Held-to-maturity investments - -
Profit from operations 2,373 2,794
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, net 44 (484) (420)
Impairment on non-financial assets, net 44 - (226)
Tangible assets - -
Intangible assets - (191)
Others - (35)
Gains or losses on non financial assets and investments, net 45 345 11
From wich: investments in subsidaries, joint ventures and associates 334 7
Negative goodwill recognised in results - -
Gains or losses on non-current assets held for sale classified as discontinued operations 46 (105) (128)
Profit or loss before tax from continuing operations 2,129 2,031
Tax expense or income from continuing operations 24 352 246
Profit for the period from continuing operations 2,481 2,277
Profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations - -
Profit for the period 2,481 2,277

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only. See Note 1.d.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 50 and Appendices are an integral part of the income statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016.




Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting
framework applicable to the Bank in Spain (see Notes 1 and 50). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

BANCO SANTANDER, S.A.

STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

(Millions of euros)

Note 2016 2015
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,481 2,277
OTHER RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSES 23 364 (356)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (75) (63)
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit pension plans (106) (90)
Non-current assets held for sale - -
Other recognised income and expense of investments in subsidaries, joint ventures and associates - -
Other valuation adjustments - -
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 24 31 27
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 23 439 (293)
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations (Effective portion) - ()
Revaluation gains (losses) - 1)
Amounts transferred to income statement - -
Other reclassifications - -
Exchanges differences - -
Revaluation gains (losses) - -
Amounts transferred to income statement - -
Other reclassifications - -
Cash flow hedges 4 1)
Revaluation gains or (losses) 4 ()
Amounts transferred to income statement - -
Transferred to initial carrying amount of hedged items - -
Other reclassifications - -
Financial assets available-for-sale 619 (416)
Revaluation gains or (losses) 830 34
Amounts transferred to income statement (211) (450)
Other reclassifications - -
Non-current assets held for sale - -
Revaluation gains (losses) - -
Amounts transferred to income statement - -
Other reclassifications - -
Income tax related to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 24 (184) 125
Total recognised income and expenses for the year 2,845 1,921

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only. See Note 1.d.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 50 and Appendices are an integral part of the statements of recognised income and expense

for the year ended 31 December 2016.




Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable

to the Bank in Spain (see Notes 1 and 50). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

BANCO SANTANDER, S.A.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY
EFOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

Millions of euros)

Capital

Other
Share instruments Other Retaineds Revaluation Other (I-E)qgrtv;

premium (Other than . equity earnings reserves reserves
capital) instruments shares

Result for the
period

(-) Dividends

Other
comprehensive
income
accumulated

Total

Balance as at 31/12/15 (*)

7,217

45,001 - 115 7,779

1,174 -

2,277

(1,546)

(158)

61,859

Adjustments due to errors

Adjustments due to changes in accounting

policies

Adjusted balance as
at 01/01/2016 (*)

7,217

45,001 - 115 7,779

1,174 -

(1,546)

(158)

61,859

Total recognised income and expense

364

2,845

Other changes in equity

74

(89) - 20 6 - 918 -

Issuance of ordinary shares

74

(89) - - - B 15 R

(121)

(1,469)

Issuance of preferred shares

Issuance of other financial instruments

Maturity of other financial instruments

Conversion of financial liabilities into
equity

Capital reduction

Dividends

(2,389)

Purchase of equity instruments

(943)

Dispossal of equity instruments

952

Transfer from equity to liabilities

Transfer from liabilities to equity

Transfers between equity items

(2.277)

Increases (decreases) due to
business combinations

Share-based payment

B B (46) B R

(46)

Others increases or (-) decreases of the
equity

957

Balance at 31/12/16

7,291

44,912 - 135 7,785

2,092 -

2,481

(1,667)

206

63,235

(*) Restated Balances. Presented for comparison purposes only. See Note 1.d.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 50 and Appendices are an integral part of the statements of changes in total equity for the year ended 31 December 2016.




Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable
to the Bank in Spain (see Notes 1 and 50). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

BANCO SANTANDER, S.A.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN TOTAL EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014 (CONTINUED)

(Millions of euros)

. Other Other . . (-) Own Other .
Caital Share instruments equi Retalpeds Revaluation Other Equi Result for the ) Dividends comprehenswe Total
pital quity quity Q]
premium (Other than | . earnings reserves reserves h period income
capital) instruments shares accumulated

Balance as at 31/12/14 (*) 6,292 38,611 - 89 7,446 - (1,649) 2 1,435 (471) 198 51,949
Adjustments due to errors - - - - - - - - - - - -
Adjustments due to changes in

accounting policies B B B 3 3 3 3,015 3 3 3 3 3,015
Adjusted balance as 6,202 38,611 - 89 7,446 - 1,366 %) 1,435 (471) 198 54,964

at 01/01/2015 (*) ! ! ! ! ! !
Total recognised income and expense - - - - - - - - 2,277 - (356) 1,921
Other changes in equity 925 6,390 26 333 (192) 2 (1,435) (1,075) - 4,974
Issuance of ordinary shares -

925 6,390 - - - 185 - - 7,500

Issuance of preferred shares - - - - - - - - - - - -
Issuance of other financial instruments - - - - - - - - - - - -
Maturity of other financial instruments - - - +- - - - - - - - -
Conversion of financial liabilities into

equity ) ) ) ) ) ) ) - ) - ) -
Capital reduction - - - - - - - - - - - -
Dividends - - - - (672) - - - - (1,546) - (2,218)
Purchase of equity instruments - - - - - - - (2,221) - - - (2,221)
Dispossal of equity instruments - - - - - - 10 2,223 - - - 2,233
Transfer from equity to liabilities - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer from liabilities to equity - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers between equity items - - - - 1,012 (48) (1,435) 471 - -
Increases (decreases) due to
business combinations ° ° B i B B i : B : B :
Share-based payment - - - (44) - - - - - - - (44)
Others increases or (-) decreases of the

equity - - - 70 @ - (339) - - - - (276)
Balance at 31/12/15 7,217 45,001 - 115 7,779 - 1,174 - 2,277 (1,546) (158) 61,859

The accompanying Notes 1 to 50 and Appendices are an integral part of the statements of changes in total equity for the year ended 31 December 2016.

(*) Restated balances. Presented for comparison purposes only. See Note 1.d.




Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable

to the Bank in Spain (see Notes 1 and 50). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

BANCO SANTANDER, S.A.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 AND 2015

(Millions of euros)

Note 2016 2015 (*)

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3,638 (1,615)
Profit for the year 4 2,481 2,277
Adjustments made to obtain the cahs flows from operating activities 1,245 3,081
Depreciation and amortisation charge 15& 16 160 202
Other adjustments 1,085 2,879
Net increase/(decrease) in operating assets (36,393) 2,367
Financial assets held-for-trading (9,646) 5,021
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (14,170) 5,925
Financial assets available-for-sale (6,860) 2,592
Loans and receivables (2,636) (8,427)
Other operating assets (3,081) (2,744)
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities (36,632) (4,585)
Liabilities held-for-trading financial (3,948) 2,642
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (8,998) (11,370)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (25,225) 8,443
Other operating liabilities 1,539 (4,300)
Income tax recovered/(paid) 151 (21)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 2,830 (453)
Payments 4,419 2,149
Tangible assets 15 373 277
Intangible assets 16 126 78
Investments 13 3,920 1,752
Subsidiaries and other business units - -
Non-current assets held for sale and associated liabilities - 42
Held-to-maturity investments - -
Other proceeds related to investing activities - -
Proceeds 7,249 1,696
Tangible assets 15 73 100
Intangible assets 16 - -
Investments 13 6,812 1,298
Subsidiaries and other business units - -
Non-current assets held for sale and associated liabilities 295 229
Held-to-maturity investments 69 69
Other payments related to investing activities - -
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (5,281) 7,860
Payments 8,584 4,729
Dividends 4 2,308 1,498
Subordinated liabilities 21 5,333 935
Redemption of own equity instruments - -
Acquisition of own equity instruments 943 2,224
Other payments related to financing activities - 72
Proceeds 3,303 12,589
Subordinated liabilities 21 2,346 2,849
Issuance of own equity instruments - 7,500
Disposal of own equity instruments 957 2,240
Other proceeds related to financing activities - -
D. EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 289 (496)
E. NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,476 5,296
F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 14,159 8,863
G. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD 15,635 14,159
Memorandum items

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD

Cash 720 831
Cash equivalents at central banks 13,377 11,546
Other financial assets 1,538 1,782

Less - Bank overdrafts refundable on demand

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only. See Note 1.d.
The accompanying Notes 1 to 50 and Appendices are an integral part of the statements of cash flows for the year ended 31 December

2015.




Translation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with the regulatory financial
reporting framework applicable to the Bank in Spain (see Notes 1 and 50). In the event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-
language version prevails.

Banco Santander, S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016

Introduction, basis of presentation of the Financial Statements and other

information

a)

b)

Introduction

Banco Santander, S.A. (“the Bank” or “Banco Santander”) is a private-law entity subject to the rules and
regulations applicable to banks operating in Spain. The Bylaws and other public information on the Bank
can be consulted on the website of the Bank (www.santander.com) and at its registered office at Paseo de
Pereda 9-12, Santander.

In addition to the operations carried on directly by it, the Bank is the head of a group of subsidiaries that
engage in various business activities and which compose, together with it, Santander Group (“the Group”
or “Santander Group"). Therefore, the Bank is obliged to prepare, in addition to its own separate financial
statements, the Group's consolidated financial statements, which also include the interests in joint
ventures and investments in associates.

The Bank's financial statements for 2015 were approved by the shareholders at the Bank's annual general
meeting on 18 March 2016. The 2016 consolidated financial statements of the Group and the 2016
financial statements of the Bank and of substantially all the Group companies have not yet been approved
by their shareholders at the respective annual general meetings. However, the Bank's board of directors
considers that the aforementioned financial statements will be approved without any changes.

Appendix IX contains a detail of the agents that assist the Bank in the performance of its business
activities in Spain.

Basis of presentation of the financial statements

The Bank's financial statements for 2016 were formally prepared by the Bank's directors (at the board
meeting on 21 February 2017) in accordance with Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004, taking into account the
subsequent amendments thereto and Spanish corporate and commercial law applicable to the Bank, using
the accounting policies and measurement bases set forth in Note 2 and, accordingly, they present fairly
the Bank's equity and financial position at 31 December 2016 and the results of its operations, of the
recognised income and expenses, of the changes in equity and of cash flows in 2016. These financial
statements were prepared from the accounting records kept by the Bank.

The notes to the financial statements contain supplementary information to that presented in the balance
sheet, income statement, statement of recognised income and expenses, statement of changes in total
equity and statement of cash flows. They provide narrative descriptions to the disaggregation of such
states in a clear, relevant, reliable and comparable manner.


http://www.santander.com/

Adoption of new standards and interpretations issued.
The following is a summary of the main Bank of Spain Circulars issued during 2016:

Circular 1/2016, of January 29, which amends Circular 1/2015 of March 24, addressed to payment service
providers on information on the discount and exchange rates received.

This Circular modifies and supplements Bank of Spain Circular 1/2015 by introducing improvements in the
requested information on the exchange and discount rates received by entities in order to facilitate their
analysis and comparability.

Bank of Spain Circular 2/2016 of February 2 directed to credit institutions on supervision and solvency.

This Circular has as its fundamental objective in relation to credit institutions to complete the transposition
of Directive 2013/36 / EU into the Spanish legal system.

Bank of Spain Circular 3/2016 of March 21, addressed to entities that hold ATMs and to issuers of cards or
payment instruments regarding information of commissions for the withdrawal of cash from ATMs.

The new regulation establishes that entities may reach agreements to set the amount of the commission to
be paid by the entity issuing the card or payment instrument to the entity that owns the cashier. In the
absence of agreements, the commission to be determined by the owner of the cashier with respect to the
entity issuing the card or instrument of payment shall be the same throughout the national territory and
shall not be discriminatory, and no differences may be derived for equivalent services. Also, the
commission may not distinguish depending on the customers of the issuing entity and may only be
reviewed annually.

Bank of Spain Circular 4/2016 of April 27, which amended Circular 4/2004 of December 22, to credit
institutions on public and reserved financial information standards and models of financial statements and
Circular 1 /2013 of May 24 on the Central of Information of Risks.

On May 6, 2016 Bank of Spain Circular 4/2016 of April 27 was published, which amended Circular 4/2004,
dated December 22, aimed at credit institutions on financial, public and reserved information standards
and on financial statement models, and Circular 1/2013 dated May 24 on the Centralo of Information of
Risks. This update is part of the process of adaptation and improvement of Circular 4/2004 to regulatory
developments, incorporating applicable regulatory changes and best practices identified in a context of
continuous evolution and refinement of credit risk accounting. The main purpose of this Circular is to
update Circular 4/2004 and its Annex IX with a view to adapting it to the latest developments in banking
regulation, maintaining its full compatibility with the accounting framework established by the International
Information Standards Financial Statements (IFRS).

This Circular updates certain Regulatory Standards of Circular 4/2004:

The Twenty-eighth, Thirty and Forty-third Regulatory Standards to refer to the new accounting
criterion on the amortization of intangible assets introduced in the amendment of the Commercial
Code by Law 22/2015 of July 20, Accounts Audit, subject to application from 1 January 2016 to the
individual and consolidated financial statements not directly subject to the IFRS framework.

The Sixty-sixth, Sixty-fourth and Sixty-seventh Regulatory Standards, as well as Annex IX, the new
content of which is included as Appendice 1 to Circular 4/2016 and which reflects the new criteria for
classifying operations according to credit risk by insolvency, the coverage of the loss for such risk,
as well as the criteria for the valuation of assets awarded or received in payment of debts, including
the estimate of impairment.



Notes 2.g) and 2.m) describe the criteria and changes introduced by Bank of Spain Circular 4/2016.
In addition, in accordance with the provisions of the First Transitory Provision "First application" in
relation to the provisions with respect to "Analysis and hedge of credit risk", the entities will apply the
changes introduced in said Circular prospectively as a change in accounting estimates, being, these
changes, object of information in the financial statements of the year 2016.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in relation to the new treatment of intangible assets, it was possible
to choose to amortize the carrying amount of goodwill existing at the end of the previous year and of
those with an indefinite useful life defined with a charge to reserves, following a linear recovery
criterion and a useful life of ten years from the date of acquisition. The amortization charge resulting
from applying this criterion to the initial value of the asset shall be reduced in the impairment loss
that the entity would have recognised since the date on which the ten-year calculation began. In this
regard, it should be mentioned that the Bank did not have intangible assets with an indefinite useful
life at year-end 2015.

The effect of the aforementioned changes introduced by Circular 4/2016 has not been significant in
relation to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Bank of Spain Circular 5/2016 of May 27 on the method of calculation so that the contributions of the
entities affiliated to the Deposit Guarantee Fund of Credit Institutions (FGD) are proportional to their risk
profile.

This Circular regulates the method that must be used so that the contributions of the entities adhering to
the FGD are proportional to their risk profile. To this end, the circular is based, in essence, on the criteria
contained in the guidelines of the European Banking Authority.

Bank of Spain Circular 6/2016 of 30 June to credit institutions and financial credit institutions, which
determines the content and format of the document "Financial Information-SME" and specifies the risk
rating methodology provided for in Law 5/2015 of 27 April on the promotion of business financing.

This Circular is divided into three chapters. Chapter | establishes the object and scope of the circular,
which includes credit institutions, and, in accordance with the provisions of article 7 of Law 5/2015 of April
27, also to financial establishments of credit. Chapter Il regulates the minimum content of the document
"Financial-SME Information”, which includes everything from the declarations to the Risk Information
Center of the Bank of Spain to the risk rating, including a comprehensive credit history, data
communicated to companies that provide Information services on the solvency of assets and on credit
and extracts of movements of the last year. Chapter Ill establishes a methodology whose essential
purpose is the standardization of the risk rating that should be granted by the entities to SMEs and self-
employed workers.

Resolution February 9, 2016, of the Institute of Accounting and Audit of Financial Statements.

On February 16, 2016, the Resolution of February 9, 2016, of the Institute of Accounting and Audit of
Financial Statements (ICAC) was published in the Official State Gazette, which establishes the standards
for registration, valuation and elaboration of the financial statements for the accounting of the Tax on
Profit.

Royal Decree-Law 3/2016 of December 3, 2016.

On 3 December 2016, Royal Decree-Law 3/2016 was published, which adopts measures in the tax field
aimed at consolidating public finances and other urgent social measures.

All accounting policies and measurement bases with a material effect on the Bank's 2016 financial
statements were applied in their preparation.



c) Use of critical

The Bank's results and the determination of its equity are sensitive to the accounting policies,
measurement bases and estimates used by the directors of the Bank in preparing the financial statements.
The main accounting policies and measurement bases are set forth in Note 2.

In the financial statements for 2016 estimates were occasionally made by the Bank's directors in order to
quantify certain of the assets, liabilities, income, expenses and obligations reported herein. These
estimates, which were made on the basis of the best information available, relate basically to the following:
- The impairment losses on certain assets (see Notes 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13, 15 and 16);

- The assumptions used in the actuarial calculation of the post-employment benefit liabilities and
commitments and other obligations (see Note 23);

- The useful life of the tangible and intangible assets (see Notes 15 and 16);

- The fair value of certain unquoted assets and liabilities (see Notes 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 18, 19 and 20).

- The recoverability of deferred tax assets (see Note 24).

- The provisions and the consideration of contingent liabilities (see Note 23).

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 2016 year-end,
future events might make it necessary to change these estimates (upwards or downwards) in coming

years. Changes in accounting estimates would be applied prospectively, recognising the effects of the
change in estimates in the related income statement.

d) Comparative information

e)

The information relating to 2015 contained in these notes to the financial statements is presented with the
information relating to 2016 for comparison purposes only and, accordingly, it does not constitute the
Bank's statutory financial statements for 2015.

On 19 November, 2015, Circular 5/2015, of 28 October, of the National Securities Market Commission,
which adapts the models established in Annex Il of Circular 1/2008, dated 30 January. For the credit
exercises, to the new models provided for in Circular 5/2014 of 28 November, of the Bank of Spain, for the
years beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The adaptation of the Circular has modified the breakdown
and presentation of certain headings in the financial statements, without these changes being significant.
The information for the year 2015 has been re-classified under this Circular in a way that is comparative.

The ICAC Resolution of February 9, 2016 (Note 1.b) introduces certain changes, such as revising the
criteria for recognizing deferred tax assets, debits and credits allocation with the tax group. as deferred tax
liabilities related to the deductibility of impairment losses of goodwill or systematic amortization. The impact
of 3,015 million euros recorded in Total equity in accordance with the new criteria in the opening balance
sheet for the year 2015 (see the Statement of Changes in total Equity and Note 24).

Capital management
i. Regulatory and economic capital
The Group's capital management is performed at regulatory and economic levels.

The aim is to secure the Group's solvency and guarantee its economic capital adequacy and its
compliance with regulatory requirements, as well as an efficient use of capital.



To this end, the regulatory and economic capital figures and their associated metrics (RORWA) (return on
risk-weighted assets), (RORAC) return on risk-adjusted capital and value creation of each business unit-
are generated, analysed and reported to the relevant governing bodies on a regular basis.

Within the framework of the internal capital adequacy assessment process (Pillar Il of the Basel Capital
Accord), the Group uses an economic capital measurement model with the objective of ensuring that there
is sufficient capital available to support all the risks of its activity in various economic scenarios, with the
solvency levels agreed upon by the Group; at the same time the Group assesses, also in the various
scenarios, whether it meets the regulatory capital ratio requirements.

In order to adequately manage the Group's capital, it is essential to estimate and analyse future needs, in
anticipation of the various phases of the business cycle. Projections of regulatory and economic capital are
made based on the budgetary information (balance sheet, income statement, etc.) and the
macroeconomic scenarios defined by the Group's economic research service. These estimates are used
by the Group as a reference when planning the management actions (issues, securitisations, etc.) required
to achieve its capital targets.

In addition, certain stress scenarios are simulated in order to assess the availability of capital in adverse
situations. These scenarios are based on sharp fluctuations in macroeconomic variables (GDP, interest
rates, housing prices, etc.) that mirror historical crisis that could happen again or plausible but unlikely
stress situations.

Following is a brief description of the regulatory capital framework to which Santander Group is subject.

In December 2010 the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision published a new global regulatory
framework for international capital standards (Basel Ill) which strengthened the requirements of the
previous frameworks, known as Basel |, Basel Il and Basel 2.5, and other requirements additional to Basel
Il (Basel 2.5), by enhancing the quality, consistency and transparency of the capital base and improving
risk coverage. On 26 June 2013 the Basel Ill legal framework was included in European law through
Directive 2013/36 (CRD 1V), repealing Directives 2006/48 and 2006/49, and through Regulation 575/2013
on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms (CRR).

The CRD IV was transposed into Spanish legislation through Law 10/2014 on the regulation, supervision
and capital adequacy of credit institutions, and its subsequent implementing regulations contained in Royal
Decree-Law 84/2015. The CRR is directly applicable in EU Member States as from 1 January 2014 and
repeals all lower-ranking rules providing for additional capital requirements.

The CRR establishes a phase-in that will permit a progressive adaptation to the new requirements in the
European Union. These phase-in arrangements were incorporated into Spanish regulations through the
approval of Royal Decree-Law 14/2013 and Bank of Spain Circular 2/2014. They affect both the new
deductions and the issues and items of own funds which cease to be eligible as such under this new
regulation. In March 2016, the European Central Bank published Regulation 2016/445/UE that modifies
some of the phase-in dates applicable to Group. The capital buffers provided for in CRD IV are also
subject to phase-in; they are applicable for the first time in 2016 and must be fully implemented by 2019.

The Basel regulatory framework is based on three pillars. Pillar | sets out the minimum capital
requirements to be met, and provides for the possibility of using internal ratings and models (the Advanced
Internal Ratings-Based (AIRB) approach) in the calculation of risk-weighted exposures. The aim is to
render regulatory requirements more sensitive to the risks actually borne by entities in carrying on their
business activities. Pillar Il establishes a supervisory review system to improve internal risk management
and internal capital adequacy assessment based on the risk profile. Lastly, Pillar 11l defines the elements
relating to disclosures and market discipline.

At 31 December 2016 the Group met the minimum capital requirements established by current legislation
(Note 54).



ii. Plan for the roll-out of advanced approaches and authorisation from the supervisory
authorities

The Group intends to adopt, over the next few years, the advanced internal ratings-based (AIRB)
approach under Basel Il for substantially all its banks, until the percentage of exposure of the loan portfolio
covered by this approach exceeds 90%. The commitment assumed before the supervisor still implies the
adaptation of advanced models within the ten key markets where Santander Group operates.

Accordingly, the Group continued in 2016 with the project for the progressive implementation of the
technology platforms and methodological improvements required for the roll-out of the AIRB approach for
regulatory capital calculation purposes at the various Group units.

To date the Group has obtained authorisation from the supervisory authorities to use the AIRB approach
for the calculation of regulatory capital requirements for credit risk for the Parent and the main subsidiaries
in Spain, the United Kingdom and Portugal, as well as for certain portfolios in Germany, Mexico, Brazil,
Chile, the Nordic countries (Norway, Sweden and Finland), France and the United States.

In 2016 approval was obtained for the portfolios of the former IFIC unit integrated in Santander Totta
(Portugal) and the Bank is awating the conclusion of the supervisor validation process for Sovereign and
Institutions portfolios from Chile, Mortgages and most part of the Revolving from Santander Consumer
Germany, as well as retail portfolio from PSA UK.

As regards the other risks explicitly addressed under Basel Pillar I, the Group is authorized to use its
internal model for market risk for its treasury trading activities in Spain, Chile, Portugal and Mexico.

For the purpose of calculating regulatory capital for operational risk, Santander Group has been applying
the standardised approach provided for under the European Capital Requirements Directive. On January
2016 the European Central Bank authorized the use of the Alternative Standardised Approach to calculate
the capital requirements at consolidated level for operational risk at Banco Santander (Brasil), S.A..

f) Environmental impact

9)

Given the business activities carried on by the Bank, it does not have any environmental liability,
expenses, assets, provisions or contingencies that might be material with respect to its equity, financial
position or results. Therefore, no specific disclosures relating to environmental issues are included in these
notes to the financial statements.

Customer Care Service Annual Report

As required by Article 17 of Ministry of Economy Order ECO/734/2004, of 11 March, on Customer Care
Departments and Services and the Customer Ombudsmen of Financial Institutions, the annual report
presented by the head of the service to the board meeting held on March 2017 is summarised in the
directors' report.



h) Deposit Guarantee Fund and Resolution Fund
a) Deposit Guarantee Fund

The Bank participates in the Deposit Guarantee Fund (“the DGF”). The annual contribution to be made by
the entities to this fund, established by Royal Decree - Law 16/2011 of October 14, by which the DGF is
created in accordance with the wording given by the Tenth Final Disposition of Law 11/2015 of June 18 on
Recovery and Resolution of credit institutions and investment services companies (in force since June 20,
2015), is determined by the Management Committee of the DGF and is established based on the
guaranteed deposits of each entity and its risk profile.

The purpose of the FGD is to guarantee deposits with credit institutions up to the limit established in said
Royal Decree-Law. In order to fulfill its objectives, the DGF draws on the aforementioned annual
contributions, the spreads that the Fund makes between the entities adhered to it and the funds raised in
the securities markets, loans and any other borrowing operations.

Taking into account the foregoing and in order to strengthen the DGF's assets, Royal Decree-Law 6/2013
of 22 March on the protection of the holders of certain savings and investment products and other financial
measures established a spill equivalent to three per thousand of the deposits of the entities as of
December 31, 2012. This amount is effective in two tranches:

i. Two fifths to be paid within twenty working days from December 31, 2013. In the first days of
January 2014, the Bank satisfied this contribution amounted to 65 million euros.

ii. Three-fifths to be paid within a maximum period of seven years and according to the payment
schedule established by the Fund's Management Committee. In this sense, according to the
schedule of contributions approved by the Governing Board of the DGF, the Bank satisfied one-
seventh of this second tranche on September 30, 2014. This Governing Board approved on
December 17, 2014 that the remaining part of the second tranche will be made through two
disbursements of the same amount each, one on June 30, 2015 (which actually took effect on that
date) and the second one in 2016, which was alredy charged.

The expenses incurred by contributions to this Fund in 2016 amounted to EUR 141 million (2015: EUR 130
million) and they are recognised under Other operating expenses in the accompanying income statement
(see Note 41).

b) National Resolution Fund.

In 2015 Royal Decree 1012/2015 of November 6 was published. It develops Law 11/2015 of June 18 on
Recovery and Resolution of credit institutions and investment services companies, and it amended Royal
Decree 2606/1996 of December 20 on Deposit Guarantee Funds of entities of credit. The abovementioned
Law 11/2015 regulates the creation of the National Resolution Fund whose financial resources should
reach, before December 31, 2024, 1% of the amount of deposits guaranteed through contributions from
credit institutions and service companies established in Spain. The details of how to calculate the
contributions to this Fund are regulated by Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/63 of 21 October
2014 and it is calculated by the Ordinary Banking Order Fund ("FROB") on a basis to the information
provided by each entity.



c¢) Single Resolution Fund

In March 2014, Parliament and the European Council reached a political agreement for the creation of
the second pillar of the banking union: the Single Resolution Mechanism ("MUR"). The main objective of
the MUR is to ensure that bank failures that could occur in the future in the banking union could be
managed efficiently with minimum costs for the taxpayer and the real economy. The scope of action of
the MUR is identical to that of the MUS, it is also a central authority. The Single Resolution Board ("JUR")
is ultimately responsible for the decision to initiate the resolution of a bank, whereas the operational
decision will be implemented in cooperation with the national resolution authorities. The JUR started its
work as an autonomous body of the EU on 1 January 2015.

The rules governing the banking union are intended to ensure that banks and their shareholders finance
the resolutions first and, if necessary, finance the entity’s creditors in part too. However, there will also be
another source of funding that can be used if the contributions of the shareholders and of the entity’s
creditors are not sufficient. This is the Single Resolution Fund ("FUR") administered by the JUR. The
regulation establishes that banks will pay the contributions to the FUR over eight years.

In this respect, on 1 January 2016, the FUR introduced by Regulation (EU) No 806/2014 of the European
Parliament and of the Council entered into force. The competence of the calculation of the contributions
that must be made by credit institutions and investment firms to the FUR corresponds to the JUR. From
2016 these contributions are based on: (a) a flat-rate contribution (or annual base contribution) pro rata of
the liabilities of each entity excluding own resources and deposits with coverage with respect to total
liabilities and excluding the liabilities own funds and deposits covered by all entities authorized in the
territory of the participating member states; and based on (b) a risk-adjusted contribution based on the
criteria laid down in Article 103 (7) of Directive 2014/59 / EU, taking into account the principle of
proportionality and without creating distortions between banking sector structures in the Member States.
The amount of this contribution is accrued annually from 2016.

The expenses incurred by contributions to the National Resolution Fund and to the Single Resolution Fund
in 2016 amounted to EUR 150 million (2015: EUR 144 million) and they are recognised under Other
operating expenses in the accompanying income statement (see Note 41).

Merger by absorption of (i) Santander Carteras, S.A. (ii) Santander Insurance Holding, S.L.U., (iii)
Santander AM Holding, S.L.U. And (iv) Carpe Diem Salud, S.L.U., Integral Training, S.A.U.,
Santander Carbon Finance, S.A.U., Fixed Income Securities, S.A.U., Oildor, S.A.U. And Cavalsa
Gestion, S.A.U., respectively (as absorbed companies) into Banco Santander, S.A. (The Bank or
absorbing company).

On June 28, 2016, three common merger projects were approved by the managers of the Bank Santander
and of the absorbed companies: (ii) Santander Insurance Holding, S.L.U .; (lii) Santander AM Holding,
S.L.U; and (iv) Carpe Diem Salud, S.L.U., Integral Training, S.A.U., Santander Carbon Finance, S.A.U.,
Fixed Income Securities, S.A.U., Oildor, S.A.U. and Cavalsa Gestion, S.A.U.

In 2015 the joint project of merger with (i) Santander Carteras, S.A was approved by the directors of the
Bank and Santander Carteras on March 27 and 26, 2014, respectively.

In accordance with Articles 49 and 51 of Law 3/2009 of 3 April on structural changes in commercial
companies ("LME"), it was not necessary to approve any of the four mergers by the Bank's general
meeting.

Likewise, these transactions constitute mergers of those regulated in article 76.1.c) of Law 27/2014 of
November 27 on Corporate Income Tax ("LIS"). The information required in article 86.1 of the
aforementioned Law is incorporated into this report (Annex VIII) in respect of each of the four mergers.



(i) Santander Insurance Holding, S.L.U.; (iii) Santander AM Holding, S.L.U; y (iv) Carpe Diem Salud,
S.L.U., Formacioén Integral, S.A.U., Santander Carbon Finance, S.A.U., Titulos de Renta Fija, S.A.U.,
Oildor, S.A.U. y Cavalsa Gestion, S.A.U

Once obtained the mandatory of the Ministry of Economy and Competitiveness (additional provision twelfth
Law 10/2014 of June 26, on the management, supervision and solvency of credit institutions) on
December 9, 2016, regarding the merger with Santander Insurance Holding, S.L.U, and on November 25,
2016, with respect to the other two mergers, and complying with the remaining conditions precedent to
which each of the mergers was submitted, the corresponding mergers deeds were executed and
registered at the Cantabria Mercantile Registry, there was the extinction without liquidation of (i) Santander
Insurance Holding, S.L.U., (ii) Santander AM Holding, S.L.U. y (iii) Carpe Diem Salud, S.L.U., Formacion
Integral, S.A.U., Santander Carbon Finance, S.A.U., Titulos de Renta Fija, S.A.U., Oildor, S.A.U. y
Cavalsa Gestion, S.A.U. and its net assets were transferred to the Bank.

Since the absorbed companies were wholly-owned by the Bank, in accordance with Article 49 of Law
3/2009, in connection with Article 26 of the LME Law, the Bank did not increase capital. Once the three
mergers became effective on 28 December 2016, date all of the shares of the absorbed companies were
fully retired, extinguished and annulled.

For the purposes of Spanish legislation, the balance sheets included in the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015, authorised for issue by the boards of directors of each of the
companies participating in the mergers and, except in the case of Formacion Integral, S.A.U. and Titulos
de Renta Fija, S.A.U. —which were not legally obliged to audit their financial statements— were taken to be
the merger balance sheets to be audited.

Pursuant to the applicable accounting regulations, 1 January 2016 was established as the date from which
the transactions of the three absorbed companies would be considered to have been performed for
accounting purposes for the account of Banco Santander.

Otherwise, It was decided to perform the mergers under the tax regime provided for in Chapter VII, Title VII
and Additional Provision Two of Spanish Income Tax Law 27/2014, and in Article 45, paragraph I. B.) 10.
of Legislative Royal Decree 1/1993, of 24 September, approving the Consolidated Spanish Transfer Tax
Law.

The balance sheets of the aborbed companies as of 31 December 2015 is as follows:
(i) Banco Santander, S.A. and Santander Insurance Holding, S.L.U. merger.

Santander Insurance Holding, S.L.U.

Millions of euros Millions of euros
ASSETS 31/12/2015 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/2015
Assets Liabilities
Investments in group entities and associates 798 | Long term provisions 4
Deferred tax assets 1 | Long term debts with group entities 278
Treasury 55 Short term debts with group entities 2
Total liabilities 284
Equity
Shareholders” equity 570
Total equity 570
Total assets 854 | Total liabilities and equity 854
Other memorandum items -




(i) Banco Santander, S.A. and Santander AM Holding, S.L.U. merger.

Santander AM Holding, S.L.U.

Millions of euros Millions of euros
ASSETS 31/12/2015 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/2015

Assets Liabilities
Investments in group entities and associates 180 Staff benefits obligations 2
Deferred tax assets 12 Debts with group entities 7
Treasury 5

Total liabilities 9

Equity

Shareholders’ equity 188

Total equity 188
Total assets 197 Total liabilities and equity 197

Other memorandum items 150

(iii) Banco Santander, S.A. and Carpe Diem Salud, S.L.U., Formacién Integral, S.A.U., Santander
Carbén Finance, S.A.U., Titulos de Renta Fija, S.A.U., Oildor, S.A.U. and Cavalsa Gestion,

S.A.U. merger
Carpe Diem Salud, S.L.U.
Thousand of Thousand of
euros euros
ASSETS 31/12/2015 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/2015
Assets Liabilities
Long-term financial investments 2,804 | Debts with group entities 321
Treasury 403 Commercial debitors 11
Total liabilities 332
Equity
Shareholders” equity 2,875
Total equity 2,875
Total activo 3,207 | Total liabilities and equity 3,207
Other memorandum items -
Formacion Integral, S.A.U.
Thousand of Thousand of
euros euros
ASSETS 31/12/2015 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/2015
Assets Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 60 | Debts with group entities 24
Treasury 130
Total liabilities 24
Equity
Shareholders” equity 166
Total equity 166
Total assets 190 | Total liabilities and equity 190
Other memorandum items -

Santander Carbon Finance, S.A.U.

Thousand of Thousand of
euros euros
ASSETS 31/12/2015 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/2015
Assets Liabilities
Investments in group entities and associates Long term debts with group entities 25,600
Inventories 122 Short term debts with group entities 6,000
Treasury 22 Commercial debtors 12
Other debtors group entities 412 | Total liabilities 31,612
62 | Equity

Shareholders’ equity (30,994)
Total equity (30,994)
Total assets 618 | Total liabilities and equity 618
Other memorandum items -
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Titulos de Renta Fija, S.A.U.

Thousand of Thousand of
euros euros
ASSETS 31/12/2015 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/2015
Assets Liabilities
Long-term financial investments 2,804 Debts with group entities 265
Short-term financial investments 8 Commercial debtors 2
Treasury 397 Total liabilities 267
Equity
Shareholders’ equity 2,942
Total equity 2,942
3,209 Total liabilities and equity 3,209
Total assets Other memorandum items -
Oildor, S.A.U.
Thousand of Thousand of
euros euros
ASSETS 31/12/2015 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/2015
Assets Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 100 Debts with group entities 1,331
Treasury 166,755 Commercial debtors 12
Total liabilities 1,343
Equity
Shareholders’ equity 165,512
Total equity 165,512
Total assets 166,855 Total liabilities and equity 166,855
Other memorandum items -

Cavalsa Gestion, S.A.U.

Thousand of Thousand of
euros euros
ASSETS 31/12/2015 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/2015
Assets Liabilities
Deferred tax assets 19 Debts with group entities 14,671
Treasury 296,694 | Commercial debtors 52
Total liabilities 14,723
Equity
Shareholders’ equity 281,990
Total equity 281,990
296,713 Total liabilities and equity 296,713
Total assets Other memorandum items -

Pursuant to the applicable accounting regulations, the recognition for accounting purposes of the
aforementioned three absorption merger transactions carried out by the Bank in 2016 gave rise to an increase
in the Bank's reserves in 2016 of EUR 1,165 million, resulting from the disposal of the investments in the eight
absorbed companies (Note 29).

(iv) Santander Carteras, S.A Sociedad Gestora de Carteras Unipersonal

Once the required authorisation was received from the Ministry of Economy and Competitiveness (Article
45.c) of the Bank Law) on 24 April 2015, and on achievement of the remaining conditions to which the
merger was subject, the related merger deed was executed and filed at the Cantabria Mercantile Registry
and Santander Carteras was extinguished without liquidation and all of its assets and liabilities were
transferred en bloc to Banco Santander.

Since the absorbed company was wholly-owned by Banco Santander, in accordance with Article 49 of Law
3/2009, in connection with Article 26 of the aforementioned Law, the Bank did not increase capital. Once
the merger became effective on 21 December 2015, all of the shares of Santander Carteras were fully
retired, extinguished and annulled.
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For the purposes of Spanish legislation, the balance sheets included in the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2013, authorised for issue by the boards of directors of Banco Santander
and Santander Carteras, were taken to be the merger balance sheets.

Pursuant to the applicable accounting regulations, 1 January 2015 was established as the date from which
the transactions of Santander Carteras would be considered to have been performed for accounting
purposes for the account of Banco Santander.

It was decided to perform the merger under the tax regime provided for in Chapter VII, Title VIl and
Additional Provision Two of Spanish Income Tax Law 27/2014, of 27 November, and in Article 45,
paragraph 1. B.) 10. of Legislative Royal Decree 1/1993, of 24 September, approving the Consolidated
Spanish Transfer Tax Law.

The balance sheet of Santander Carteras as at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Santander Carteras, S.A.

ASSETS 31/12/14 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 31/12/14

LIABILITIES

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 38 | FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST 7
TAX LIABILITIES 1
OTHER LIABILITIES 1
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9
EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 29
TOTAL EQUITY 29

TOTAL ASSETS 38 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 38
OTHER MEMORANDUM ITEMS 3,750

Pursuant to the applicable accounting regulations, the recognition for accounting purposes of the
aforementioned merger transactions carried out by the Bank in 2016 gave rise to an increase in the Bank's
reserves of EUR 4 million, resulting from the disposal of the investments in the absorbed companies.

Events after the reporting period

No significant events occurred from 1 January 2017 to the date on which these financial statements were
authorized for issue.

Accounting policies

The accounting policies applied in preparing the financial statements were as follows:

a) Foreign currency transactions

The Bank's functional currency is the euro. Therefore, all balances and transactions denominated in
currencies other than the euro are deemed to be denominated in foreign currency.

In general, foreign currency balances, including those of branches in countries not belonging to the
Monetary Union, were translated to euros at the average official exchange rates prevailing on the Spanish
spot foreign exchange market at each year-end (using the market price of the US dollar in local markets in
the case of currencies not traded in the Spanish market).
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b)

The exchange differences arising on the translation of foreign currency balances to the functional currency
are generally recognised at their net amount under Exchange differences in the Income statement, except
for exchange differences arising on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss, which are
recognised in the income statement without distinguishing them from other changes in the fair value of
those financial instruments.

Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates

Subsidiaries or Group entities are defined as entities over which the Bank has the capacity to exercise
control; control is, in general but not exclusively, presumed to exist when the Parent owns directly or
indirectly half or more of the voting power of the investee or, even if this percentage is lower or zero, when,
as in the case of agreements with shareholders of the investee, the Bank is granted control. Control is the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity, as stipulated by the law, the Bylaws or
agreement, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Joint ventures are deemed to be ventures that are not subsidiaries but which are jointly controlled by two
or more unrelated entities. This is evidenced by contractual arrangements whereby two or more entities
(venturers) acquire interests in entities (jointly controlled entities) or undertake operations or hold assets so
that strategic financial and operating decisions affecting the joint venture require the unanimous consent of
the venturers.

Associates are entities over which the Bank is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control
or joint control. Significant influence generally exists when the Bank holds 20% or more of the voting power
of the investee.

Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates are presented in the balance sheet at
acquisition cost, net of any impairment losses.

When there is evidence of impairment of these investments, the amount of the related impairment loss is
equal to the difference between the carrying amount of the investments and their recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised with a charge to Impairment losses on other assets (net) - Other assets
in the income statement.

As at 31 December 2016, the Bank controlled the following companies in which it held an ownership
interest of less than 50% of the share capital: (i) Luri 1, S.A. and (ii) Luri 2, S.A. The percentage ownership
interests in the aforementioned companies were 31% and 30%, respectively (see Appendix I). Although
the Bank holds less than half the voting power, it manages and, as a result, exercises control over these
entities. The company object of the first two entities is the acquisition of real estate and other general
operations relating thereto, including rental, and the purchase and sale of properties, the company object
of the latter entity is the provision of payment services.

At 31 December 2016, the Bank exercised joint control of Luri 3, S.A., despite holding 10% of its share
capital. This decision is based on the Bank's presence on the company's board of directors, in which the
agreement of all members is required for decision-making.

Appendices | and Il contain significant information on these companies. In addition, Note 13 provides
information on the most significant acquisitions and disposals in 2016 and 2015.
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c) Definitions and classification of financial instruments
i. Definitions

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the issuing entity after
deducting all of its liabilities.

A financial derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to the change in an
observable market variable (such as an interest rate, foreign exchange rate, financial instrument price,
market index or credit rating), whose initial investment is very small compared with other financial
instruments with a similar response to changes in market factors, and which is generally settled at a future
date.

Hybrid financial instruments are contracts that simultaneously include a non-derivative host contract
together with a derivative, known as an embedded derivative, that is not separately transferable and has
the effect that some of the cash flows of the hybrid contract vary in a way similar to a stand-alone
derivative.

Compound financial instruments are contracts that simultaneously create for their issuer a financial liability
and an own equity instrument (such as convertible bonds, which entitle their holders to convert them into
equity instruments of the issuer).

The preference shares contingently convertible into ordinary shares eligible as Additional Tier 1 capital
(“CCPSs”) -perpetual preference shares, which may be repurchased by the issuer in certain
circumstances, the interest on which is discretionary, and would convert into a variable number of newly
issued ordinary shares if the capital ratio of the Bank or its consolidable group falls below a given
percentage (trigger event), as those two terms are defined in the related issue prospectuses- are
recognised for accounting purposes by the Bank as compound instruments. The liability component
reflects the issuer’s obligation to deliver a variable number of shares and the equity component reflects the
issuer's discretion in relation to the payment of the related coupons. In order to effect the initial allocation,
the Bank estimates the fair value of the liability as the amount that would have to be delivered if the trigger
event were to occur immediately and, accordingly, the equity component, calculated as the residual
amount, is zero. In view of the aforementioned discretionary nature of the payment of the coupons, they
are deducted directly from equity.

The following transactions are not treated for accounting purposes as financial instruments:
- Investments in associates and joint ventures (see Note 13).

- Rights and obligations under employee benefit plans (see Note 23).

- Rights and obligations under insurance contracts (see Note 14).

- Contracts and obligations relating to employee remuneration based on own equity instruments (see
Note 30).
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ii. Classification of financial assets for measurement purposes

Financial assets are initially classified into the various categories used for management and measurement
purposes, unless they have to be presented as Non-current assets held for sale or they relate to Cash and
cash balances at central banks and other deposits on demand, Changes in the fair value of hedged items
in portfolio hedges of interest rate risk (asset side), Hedging derivatives and Investments, which are
reported separately.

Financial assets are included for measurement purposes in one of the following categories:

- Financial assets held for trading (at fair value through profit or loss): this category includes financial
assets acquired for the purpose of generating a profit in the near term from fluctuations in their prices
and financial derivatives that are not designated as hedging instruments.

- Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss: this category includes hybrid financial
assets not held for trading that are measured entirely at fair value and financial assets not held for
trading that are included in this category in order to obtain more relevant information, either because
this eliminates or significantly reduces recognition or measurement inconsistencies (accounting
mismatches) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or
losses on them on different bases, or because a group of financial assets or financial assets and
liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the group is provided on
that basis to the Bank's key management personnel. Financial assets may only be included in this
category on the date they are acquired or originated.

- Financial assets available-for-sale: This category includes debt instruments not classified as Held-to-
maturity investments, Loans and receivables or Financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss, and equity instruments issued by entities other than subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
provided that such instruments have not been classified as Financial assets held for trading or as
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss.

- Loans and receivables: this category includes the investment arising from ordinary lending activities,
such as the cash amounts of loans drawn down and not yet repaid by customers or the deposits placed
with other institutions, whatever the legal instrument, unquoted debt securities and receivables from the
purchasers of goods, or the users of services, constituting part of the Bank's business.

The Bank generally intends to hold the loans and credits granted by it until their final maturity and,
therefore, they are presented in the balance sheet at their amortised cost (which includes any
reductions required to reflect the estimated losses on their recovery).

- Investments Held-to-maturity: this category includes debt instruments, with fixed maturity and with fixed
or determinable payments, for which the Bank has both the intention and proven ability to hold to
maturity.

iii. Classification of financial assets for presentation purposes
Financial assets are classified by nature into the following items in the balance sheet:

- Cash, cash balances at central banks and other deposits on demand: cash balances and balances
receivable on demand relating to deposits with central banks and credit institutions.
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Loans and advances: includes the debit balances of all credit and loans granted by the Bank, other
than those represented by securities, as well as finance lease receivables and other debit balances of
a financial nature in favour of the Bank, such as cheques drawn on credit institutions, balances
receivable from clearing houses and settlement agencies for transactions on the stock exchange and
organised markets, bonds given in cash, capital calls, fees and commissions receivable for financial
guarantees and debit balances arising from transactions not originating in banking transactions and
services, such as the collection of rentals and similar items. They are classified, on the basis of the
institutional sector to which the debtor belongs, into:

- Central Banks, Credit of ant nature, including deposits and money market operations received from
the Bank of Spain or other central banks.

- Credit institutions: Credit of any nature, including deposits and money market operations, in the
name of credit institutions.

- Customers: Includes the remaining credit, including money market operations through central
counterparties.

Debt instruments: bonds and other securities that represent a debt for their issuer, that generate an
interest return, and that are in the form of certificates or book entries.

Equity instruments: financial instruments issued by other entities, such as shares, which have the
nature of equity instruments for the issuer, other than investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associates. Investment fund units are included in this item.

Derivatives: includes the fair value in favour of the Bank of derivatives which do not form part of
hedge accounting, including embedded derivatives separated from hybrid financial instruments.

Changes in the fair value of hedged items in portfolio hedges of interest rate risk: this item is the
balancing entry for the amounts credited to the income statement in respect of the measurement of
the portfolios of financial instruments which are effectively hedged against interest rate risk through
fair value hedging derivatives.

Hedging derivatives: includes the fair value in favour of the Bank of derivatives, including embedded
derivatives separated from hybrid financial instruments, designated as hedging instruments in hedge
accounting.

iv. Classification of financial liabilities for measurement purposes

Financial liabilities are initially classified into the various categories used for management and
measurement purposes, unless they have to be presented as Liabilities associated with non-current assets
held for sale or they relate to Hedging derivatives or Changes in the fair value of hedged items in portfolio
hedges of interest rate risk (liability side), which are reported separately.

Financial liabilities are included for measurement purposes in one of the following categories:

Financial liabilities held for trading (at fair value through profit or loss): this category includes financial
liabilities incurred for the purpose of generating a profit in the near term from fluctuations in their
prices, financial derivatives not designated as hedging instruments, and financial liabilities arising
from the outright sale of financial assets acquired under reverse repurchase agreements ("reverse
repos") or borrowed (short positions).
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Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss: financial liabilities are included in this
category when they provide more relevant information, either because this eliminates or significantly
reduces recognition or measurement inconsistencies (accounting mismatches) that would otherwise
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases, or because a group of financial liabilities or financial assets and liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and information about the group is provided on that basis to the Bank's key
management personnel. Liabilities may only be included in this category on the date when they are
incurred or originated.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: financial liabilities, irrespective of their instrumentation and
maturity, not included in any of the above-mentioned categories which arise from the ordinary
borrowing activities carried on by financial institutions.

v. Classification of financial liabilities for presentation purposes

Financial liabilities are classified by nature into the following items in the balance sheet:

Deposits: includes all repayable balances received in cash by the Bank, other than those instrumented
as marketable securities and those having the substance of subordinated liabilities (amount of the
loans received, which for credit priority pursposes are located behind common creditors), except for
debt instruments. This item also includes cash bonds and cash consignments received the amount of
which may be invested without restriction. Deposits are classified on the basis of the creditor's
institutional sector into:

- Centrals banks: deposits of any nature, including credit received and money market operations
received from the Bank of Spain or other central banks.

- Credit institutions: deposits of any nature, including credit received and money market operations in
the name of credit institutions.

- Customer: includes the remaining deposits, including money market operations through central
counterparties.

Marketable debt securities: Includes the amount of bonds and other debt represented by marketable
securities, other than those having the substance of subordinated liabilities. (Amount of the loans
received, which for credit priority purposes are located behind common creditors, and includes the
amount of the financial instruments issued by the Bank which, having the legal nature of capital, do not
meet the requirements to qualify as equity, such as certain preferred shares issued). This item includes
the component that has the consideration of financial liability of the securities issued that are
compound financial instruments.

Derivatives: Includes the fair value, with a negative balance for the Bank, of derivatives, including
embedded derivatives separated from the host contract, which do not form part of hedge accounting.

Short positions: includes the amount of financial liabilities arising from the outright sale of financial
assets acquired under reverse repurchase agreements or borrowed.

Other financial liabilities: Includes the amount of payment obligations having the nature of financial
liabilities not included in other items, and liabilities under financial guarantee contracts, unless they
have been classified as non-performing.
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- Changes in the fair value of hedged items in portfolio hedges of interest rate risk: this item is the
balancing entry for the amounts charged to the consolidated income statement in respect of the
measurement of the portfolios of financial instruments which are effectively hedged against interest
rate risk through fair value hedging derivatives.

- Hedging derivatives: includes the fair value of the Bank's liability in respect of derivatives, including
embedded derivatives separated from hybrid financial instruments, designated as hedging instruments
in hedge accounting.

d) Measurement of financial assets and liabilities and recognition of fair value
changes

In general, financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised at fair value which, in the absence of
evidence to the contrary, is deemed to be the transaction price. Financial instruments not measured at fair
value through profit or loss are adjusted by the transaction costs. Financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently measured at each year-end as follows:

i. Measurement of financial assets

Financial assets are measured at fair value, without deducting any transaction costs that may be incurred
on their disposal, except for loans and receivables, investments held-to-maturity, unquoted equity
instruments which cannot be reliably measured and financial derivatives that have those equity
instruments as their underlying and are settled by delivery of those instruments.

The fair value of a financial instrument on a given date is taken to be the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. The most
objective and common reference for the fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be paid
for it on an active, transparent and deep market (quoted price or market price). At 31 December 2016
there were no significant investments in quoted financial instruments that had ceased to be recognised at
their quoted price because their market could not be deemed to be active.

If there is no market price for a given financial instrument, its fair value is estimated on the basis of the
price established in recent transactions involving similar instruments and, in the absence thereof, of
valuation techniques commonly used by the international financial community, taking into account the
specific features of the instrument to be measured and, particularly, the various types of risk associated
with it.

All derivatives are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value from the trade date. If the fair value is
positive, they are recognised as an asset and if the fair value is negative, they are recognised as a liability.
The fair value on the trade date is deemed, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, to be the
transaction price. The changes in the fair value of derivatives from the trade date are recognised in
Gains/losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading (net) in the consolidated income statement.
Specifically, the fair value of financial derivatives traded in organised markets included in the portfolios of
financial assets or liabilities held for trading is deemed to be their daily quoted price and if, for exceptional
reasons, the quoted price cannot be determined on a given date, these financial derivatives are measured
using methods similar to those used to measure OTC derivatives.

The fair value of OTC derivatives is taken to be the sum of the future cash flows arising from the
instrument, discounted to present value at the date of measurement (present value or theoretical close)
using valuation techniques commonly used by the financial markets: net present value (NPV), option
pricing models and other methods.
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Loans and receivables and Investments held-to-maturity are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Amortised cost is understood to be the acquisition cost of a financial asset or
liability plus or minus, as appropriate, the principal repayments and the cumulative amortisation (taken to
the consolidated income statement) of the difference between the initial cost and the maturity amount. In
the case of financial assets, amortised cost also includes any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. In
the case of loans and receivables hedged in fair value hedges, the changes in the fair value of these
assets related to the risk or risks being hedged are recognised.

The effective interest rate is the discount rate that exactly matches the carrying amount of a financial
instrument to all its estimated cash flows of all kinds over its remaining life. For fixed rate financial
instruments, the effective interest rate coincides with the contractual interest rate established on the
acquisition date plus, where applicable, the fees and transaction costs that, because of their nature, form
part of their financial return. In the case of floating rate financial instruments, the effective interest rate
coincides with the rate of return prevailing in all connections until the next benchmark interest reset date.

Unquoted equity instruments which cannot be reliably measured in a sufficiently objective manner and
financial derivatives that have those instruments as their underlying and are settled by delivery of those
instruments are measured at acquisition cost adjusted, where appropriate, by any related impairment loss.

The amounts at which the financial assets are recognised represent, in all material respects, the Bank’s
maximum exposure to credit risk at each reporting date. Also, the Bank has received collateral and other
credit enhancements to mitigate its exposure to credit risk, which consist mainly of mortgage guarantees,
cash collateral, equity instruments and personal security, assets leased out under finance lease and full-
service lease agreements, assets acquired under repurchase agreements, securities loans and credit
derivatives.

ii. Measurement of financial liabilities

In general, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, as defined above, except for those included
under Financial liabilities held for trading and Other financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss and financial liabilities designated as hedged items (or hedging instruments) in fair value
hedges, which are measured at fair value.

iii. Valuation techniques

The following table shows a summary of the fair values, at the end of 2016 and 2015, of the financial
assets and liabilities indicated below, classified on the basis of the various measurement methods used by
the Group to determine their fair value:

Millions of euros
2016 2015
Published price Published price
quotations in Internal quotations in Internal
active Markets models active Markets models
(Level 1) (Level 2 and 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2 and 3) Total
Financial assets held for trading 64,259 83,928 148,187 65,849 80,497 146,346
Financial asset_s designated at fair value 3,220 28,389 31,609 3,244 41,799 45,043
through profit or loss
Financial assets available-for-sale (1) 89,563 25,862 115,425 92,284 27,962 120,246
Hedging derivatives (assets) 216 10,161 10,377 271 7,456 7,727
Financial liabilities held for trading 20,906 87,859 108,765 17,058 88,160 105,218
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit of loss - 40,263 40,263 - 54,768 54,768
Hedging derivatives (liabilities) 9 8,147 8,156 400 8,537 8,937
Liabilities under insurance contracts - 652 652 - 627 627

(1) In addition to the financial instruments measured at fair value shown in the foregoing table, at 31 December 2016 the
Group held equity instruments classified as financial assets available-for-sale and carried at cost amounting to EUR

1,349 million (31 December 2015: EUR 1,790 million).
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The financial instruments at fair value determined on the basis of published price quotations in active
markets (Level 1) include government debt securities, private-sector debt securities, derivatives traded in
organised markets, securitised assets, shares, short positions and fixed-income securities issued.

In cases where price quotations cannot be observed, management makes its best estimate of the price
that the market would set, using its own internal models. In most cases, these internal models use data
based on observable market parameters as significant inputs (Level 2) and, in very specific cases, they
use significant inputs not observable in market data (Level 3). In order to make these estimates, various
techniques are employed, including the extrapolation of observable market data. The best evidence of the
fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is the transaction price, unless the fair value of the
instrument can be obtained from other market transactions performed with the same or similar instruments
or can be measured by using a valuation technique in which the variables used include only observable
market data, mainly interest rates.

The Group has developed a formal process for the systematic valuation and management of financial
instruments, which has been implemented worldwide across all the Group's units. The governance
scheme for this process distributes responsibiliies between two independent divisions: Treasury
(development, marketing and daily management of financial products and market data) and Risk (on a
periodic basis, validation of pricing models and market data, computation of risk metrics, new transaction
approval policies, management of market risk and implementation of fair value adjustment policies).

The approval of new products follows a sequence of steps (request, development, validation, integration in
corporate systems and quality assurance) before the product is brought into production. This process
ensures that pricing systems have been properly reviewed and are stable before they are used.

The following subsections set forth the most important products and families of derivatives, and the related
valuation techniques and inputs, by asset class:

Fixed income and inflation

The fixed income asset class includes basic instruments such as interest rate forwards, interest rate swaps
and cross currency swaps, which are valued using the net present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted taking into account basis swap and cross currency spreads determined on the basis of the
payment frequency and currency of each leg of the derivative. Vanilla options, including caps, floors and
swaptions, are priced using the Black & Scholes model, which is one of the benchmark industry models.
More exotic derivatives are priced using more complex models which are generally accepted as standard
across institutions.

These pricing models are fed with observable market data such as deposit interest rates, futures rates,
cross currency swap and constant maturity swap rates, and basis spreads, on the basis of which different
yield curves, depending on the payment frequency, and discounting curves are calculated for each
currency. In the case of options, implied volatilities are also used as model inputs. These volatilities are
observable in the market for cap and floor options and swaptions, and interpolation and extrapolation of
volatilities from the quoted ranges are carried out using generally accepted industry models. The pricing of
more exotic derivatives may require the use of non-observable data or parameters, such as correlation
(among interest rates and cross-asset), mean reversion rates and prepayment rates, which are usually
defined from historical data or through calibration.

Inflation-related assets include zero-coupon or year-on-year inflation-linked bonds and swaps, valued with
the present value method using forward estimation and discounting. Derivatives on inflation indices are
priced using standard or more complex bespoke models, as appropriate. Valuation inputs of these models
consider inflation-linked swap spreads observable in the market and estimations of inflation seasonality, on
the basis of which a forward inflation curve is calculated. Also, implied volatilities taken from zero-coupon
and year-on-year inflation options are also inputs for the pricing of more complex derivatives.
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Equity and foreign exchange

The most important products in these asset classes are forward and futures contracts; they also include
vanilla, listed and OTC (Over-The-Counter) derivatives on single underlying assets and baskets of assets.
Vanilla options are priced using the standard Black-Scholes model and more exotic derivatives involving
forward returns, average performance, or digital, barrier or callable features are priced using generally
accepted industry models or bespoke models, as appropriate. For derivatives on illiquid stocks, hedging
takes into account the liquidity constraints in models.

The inputs of equity models consider yield curves, spot prices, dividends, asset funding costs (repo margin
spreads), implied volatilities, correlation among equity stocks and indices, and cross-asset correlation.
Implied volatilities are obtained from market quotes of European and American-style vanilla call and put
options. Various interpolation and extrapolation techniques are used to obtain continuous volatility for
illiquid stocks. Dividends are usually estimated for the mid and long term. Correlations are implied, when
possible, from market quotes of correlation-dependent products. In all other cases, proxies are used for
correlations between benchmark underlyings or correlations are obtained from historical data.

The inputs of foreign exchange models include the yield curve for each currency, the spot foreign
exchange rate, the implied volatilities and the correlation among assets of this class. Volatilities are
obtained from European call and put options which are quoted in markets as at-the-money, risk reversal or
butterfly options. llliquid currency pairs are usually handled by using the data of the liquid pairs from which
the illiquid currency can be derived. For more exotic products, unobservable model parameters may be
estimated by fitting to reference prices provided by other non-quoted market sources.

Credit

The most common instrument in this asset class is the credit default swap (CDS), which is used to hedge
credit exposure to third parties. In addition, models for first-to-default (FTD), n-to-default (NTD) and single-
tranche collateralised debt obligation (CDO) products are also available. These products are valued with
standard industry models, which estimate the probability of default of a single issuer (for CDS) or the joint
probability of default of more than one issuer for FTD, NTD and CDO.

Valuation inputs are the yield curve, the CDS spread curve and the recovery rate. For indices and
important individual issuers, the CDS spread curve is obtained in the market. For less liquid issuers, this
spread curve is estimated using proxies or other credit-dependent instruments. Recovery rates are usually
set to standard values. For listed single-tranche CDO, the correlation of joint default of several issuers is
implied from the market. For FTD, NTD and bespoke CDO, the correlation is estimated from proxies or
historical data when no other option is available.

Valuation adjustment for counterparty risk or default risk

The Credit valuation adjustment (CVA) is a valuation adjustment to OTC derivatives as a result of the risk
associated with the credit exposure assumed to each counterparty.

The CVA is calculated taking into account potential exposure to each counterparty in each future period.
The CVA for a specific counterparty is equal to the sum of the CVA for all the periods. The following inputs
are used to calculate the CVA:

- Expected exposure: including for each transaction the mark-to-market (MtM) value plus an add-on for
the potential future exposure for each period. Mitigating factors such as collateral and netting
agreements are taken into account, as well as a temporary impairment factor for derivatives with
interim payments.

- LGD: percentage of final loss assumed in a counterparty credit event/default.
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- Probability of default: for cases where there is no market information (the CDS quoted spread curve,
etc.), proxies based on companies holding exchange-listed CDS, in the same industry and with the
same external rating as the counterparty, are used.

- Discount factor curve.

The debit valuation adjustment (DVA) is a valuation adjustment similar to the CVA but, in this case, it
arises as a result of the Group's own risk assumed by its counterparties in OTC derivatives.

The CVA at 31 December 2016 amounted to EUR 643.9 million (24.3% less than 2015) and DVA
amounted to EUR 390.2 million (-26.5%). The reductions are due to a generalised fall in credit spread.

In adittion, the Group amounts the funding fair value adjustment (FFVA); FFVA is calculated by applying
future market funding spreads to the expected future funding exposure of any uncollateralised component
of the OTC derivative portfolio. This includes the uncollateralised component of collateralised derivatives in
addition to derivatives that are fully uncollateralised. The expected future funding exposure is calculated by
a simulation methodology, where available. The FFVA impact is not material for the financial statements of
the Group as of 31 December 2016.

Valuation adjustments due to model risk

The valuation models described above do not involve a significant level of subjectivity, since they can be
adjusted and recalibrated, where appropriate, through internal calculation of the fair value and subsequent
comparison with the related actively traded price. However, valuation adjustments may be necessary when
market quoted prices are not available for comparison purposes.

The sources of risk are associated with uncertain model parameters, illiquid underlying issuers, poor
quality market data or missing risk factors (sometimes the best available option is to use limited models
with controllable risk). In these situations, the Group calculates and applies valuation adjustments in
accordance with common industry practice. The main sources of model risk are described below.

In the fixed income markets, the sources of model risk include bond index correlations, basis spread
modelling, the risk of calibrating model parameters and the treatment of near-zero or negative interest
rates. Other sources of risk arise from the estimation of market data, such as volatilities or yield curves,
whether used for estimation or cash flow discounting purposes.

In the equity markets, the sources of model risk include forward skew modelling, the impact of stochastic
interest rates, correlation and multi-curve modelling. Other sources of risk arise from managing hedges of
digital callable and barrier option payments. Also worthy of consideration as sources of risk are the
estimation of market data such as dividends and correlation for quanto and composite basket options.

For specific financial instruments relating to home mortgage loans secured by financial institutions in the
UK (which are regulated and partially financed by the Government) and property asset derivatives, the
main input is the Halifax House Price Index (HPI). In these cases, risk assumptions include estimations of
the future growth and the volatility of the HPI, the mortality rate and the implied credit spreads.

Inflation markets are exposed to model risk resulting from uncertainty around modelling the correlation
structure among various CPI rates. Another source of risk may arise from the bid-offer spread of inflation-
linked swaps.

The currency markets are exposed to model risk resulting from forward skew modelling and the impact of
stochastic interest rate and correlation modelling for multi-asset instruments. Risk may also arise from
market data, due to the existence of specific illiquid foreign exchange pairs.
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The most important source of model risk for credit derivatives relates to the estimation of the correlation
between the probabilities of default of different underlying issuers. For illiquid underlying issuers, the CDS
spread may not be well defined.

Set forth below are the financial instruments at fair value whose measurement was based on internal
models (Levels 2 and 3) at 31 December 2016 and 2015:

Millions of euros

Fair values calculated using
internal models at

31/12/16
Level 2 Level 3 Valuation technigues Main assumptions
ASSETS: 146,991 1,349
Financial assets held for trading 83,587 341
Credit institutions 3,220 - | Present VValue Method Yield curves, FX market prices
Customers () 9,504 - | Present Value Method Yield curves, FX market prices
Debt and equity instruments 798 40 | Present Value Method Yield curves, HPI, FX market prices
Derivatives 70,065 301
Swaps 53,499 55 | Present Value Method, Yield curves, FX market prices, Basis, Liquidity
Gaussian Copula (b)
Exchange rate options 524 2| Black-Scholes Model Yield curves, Volatility surfaces, FX market prices,
Liquidity
Interest rate options 5,349 173 | Black's Model, Heath-Jarrow- | Yield curves, Volatility surfaces, FX market prices,
Morton Model Liquidity, Correlation
Interest rate futures 1,447 - | Present Value Method Yield curves, FX market prices
Index and securities options 1,725 26 | Black-Scholes Model Yield curves, Volatility surfaces, FX & EQ market prices,
Dividends, Correlation, Liquidity, HPI
Other 7,521 45 | Present Value Method, Monte | Yield curves, Volatility surfaces, FX market prices, Other
Carlo simulation and other
Hedging derivatives 10,134 27
Swaps 9,737 27 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves, Basis
Exchange rate options - - | Black-Scholes Model FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces
Interest rate options 13 - | Black's Model FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces
Other 384 -[N/A N/A
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss 28,064 325
Credit institutions 10,069 - | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Customers (c) 17,521 74 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves, HPI
Debt and equity instruments 474 251 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Financial assets available-for-sale 25,206 656
Debt and equity instruments 25,206 656 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
LIABILITIES: 136,835 86
Financial liabilities held for trading 87,790 69
Central banks 1,351 - | Present VValue Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Credit institutions 44 - | Present VValue Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Customers 9,996 - | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Debt securities issues - - | Present VValue Method Yield curves, HPI, FX market prices
Derivatives 73,481 69
Swaps 57,103 1| Present Value Method, FX market prices, Yield curves, Basis, Liquidity, HPI
Gaussian Copula (b)
Exchange rate options 413 - | Black-Scholes Model FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces,
Liquidity
Interest rate options 6,485 21| Black's Model, Heath-Jarrow- | FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces,
Morton Model Liquidity, Correlation
Index and securities options 1,672 46 | Black-Scholes Model FX & EQ market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces,
Dividends, Correlation, Liquidity, HPI
Interest rate and equity futures 1,443 - | Present Value Method FX & EQ market prices, Yield curves
Other 6,365 1| Present Value Method, Monte | FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces, Other
Carlo simulation and other
Short positions 2,918 - | Present Value Method FX & EQ market prices, Yield curves
Hedging derivatives 8,138 9
Swaps 6,676 9 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves, Basis
Exchange rate options - - | Black-Scholes Model FX market prices, Yield curves
Interest rate options 10 - | Black's Model FX market prices, Yield curves
Other 1,452 -|N/A N/A
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss 40,255 8 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Liabilities under insurance contracts 652 -
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Millions of euros
Fair values calculated
using internal models at
31/12/15
Level 2 Level 3 Valuation techniques Main assumptions
ASSETS: 155,233 2,481
Financial assets held for trading 79,547 950
Credit institutions 1,352 - | Present Value Method Yield curves, FX market prices
Customers (a) 6,081 - | Present Value Method Yield curves, FX market prices
Debt and equity instruments 650 43 | Present Value Method Yield curves, HPI, FX market prices
Derivatives 71,464 907
Swaps 52,904 54 | Present Value Method, Yield curves, FX market prices, Basis, Liquidity
Gaussian Copula (b)
Exchange rate options 1,005 - | Black-Scholes Model Yield curves, Volatility surfaces, FX market prices,
Liquidity
Interest rate options 8,276 619 | Black's Model, Heath- Yield curves, Volatility surfaces, FX market prices,
Jarrow-Morton Model Liquidity, Correlation
Interest rate futures 84 - | Present Value Method Yield curves, FX market prices
Index and securities options 1,585 120 | Black-Scholes Model Yield curves, Volatility surfaces, FX & EQ market
prices, Dividends, Correlation, Liquidity, HPI
Other 7,610 114 | Present Value Method, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces, FX market prices,
Monte Carlo simulation and Other
other
Hedging derivatives 7,438 18
Swaps 6,437 18 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves, Basis
Exchange rate options - - | Black-Scholes Model FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces
Interest rate options 19 - | Black's Model FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces
Other 982 -|N/A N/A
Financial assets designated at fair value 41,285 514
through profit or loss
Credit institutions 26,403 - | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Customers (c) 14,213 81 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves, HPI
Debt and equity instruments 669 433 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Financial assets available-for-sale 26,963 999
Debt and equity instruments 26,963 999 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
LIABILITIES: 151,768 324
Financial liabilities held for trading 87,858 302
Central banks 2,178 - | Present VValue Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Credit institutions 76 - | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Customers 9,187 - | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Debt securities issues - - | Present Value Method Yield curves, HPI, FX market prices
Derivatives 74,893 302
Swaps 55,055 1| Present Value Method, FX market prices, Yield curves, Basis, Liquidity, HPI
Gaussian Copula (b)
Exchange rate options 901 - | Black-Scholes Model FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces,
Liquidity
Interest rate options 9,240 194 | Black's Model, Heath- FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces,
Jarrow-Morton Model Liquidity, Correlation
Index and securities options 2,000 107 | Black-Scholes Model FX & EQ market prices, Yield curves, Volatility
surfaces, Dividends, Correlation, Liquidity, HPI
Interest rate and equity futures 101 - | Present Value Method FX & EQ market prices, Yield curves
Other 7,596 - | Present Value Method, FX market prices, Yield curves, Volatility surfaces,
Monte Carlo simulationand |  Other
other
Short positions 1,524 - | Present Value Method FX & EQ market prices, Yield curves
Hedging derivatives 8,526 11
Swaps 7,971 11 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves, Basis
Exchange rate options - - | Black-Scholes Model FX market prices, Yield curves
Interest rate options 12 - | Black's Model FX market prices, Yield curves
Other 543 N/A N/A
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss 54,757 11 | Present Value Method FX market prices, Yield curves
Liabilities under insurance contracts 627 -

(a) Includes mainly short-term loans and reverse repurchase agreements with corporate customers (mainly brokerage and
investment companies).

(b) Includes credit risk derivatives with a net fair value of EUR - 1 million at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015 positive net fair value of
EUR 46 million). These assets and liabilities are measured using the Standard Gaussian Copula Model.

(c) Includes home mortgage loans to financial institutions in the UK (which are regulated and partly financed by the Government). The fair
value of these loans was obtained using observable market variables, including current market transactions with similar amounts and
collateral facilitated by the UK Housing Association. Since the Government is involved in these financial institutions, the credit risk
spreads have remained stable and are homogeneous in this sector. The results arising from the valuation model are checked against
current market transactions.
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Level 3 financial instruments

Set forth below are the Group's main financial instruments measured using unobservable market data as
significant inputs of the internal models (Level 3):

- Instruments in Santander UK's portfolio (loans, debt instruments and derivatives) linked to the House
Price Index (HPI). Even if the valuation techniques used for these instruments may be the same as
those used to value similar products (present value in the case of loans and debt instruments, and the
Black-Scholes model for derivatives), the main factors used in the valuation of these instruments are
the HPI spot rate, the growth and volatility thereof, and the mortality rates, which are not always
observable in the market and, accordingly, these instruments are considered illiquid.

e HPI spot rate: for some instruments the NSA HPI spot rate, which is directly observable and
published on a monthly basis, is used. For other instruments where regional HPI rates must be
used (published quarterly), adjustments are made to reflect the different composition of the
rates and adapt them to the regional composition of Santander UK's portfolio.

e HPI growth rate: this is not always directly observable in the market, especially for long
maturities, and is estimated in accordance with existing quoted prices. To reflect the uncertainty
implicit in these estimates, adjustments are made based on an analysis of the historical volatility
of the HPI, incorporating reversion to the mean.

e HPI volatility: the long-term volatility is not directly observable in the market but is estimated on
the basis of shorter-term quoted prices and by making an adjustment to reflect the existing
uncertainty, based on the standard deviation of historical volatility over various time periods.

e Mortality rates: these are based on published official tables and adjusted to reflect the
composition of the customer portfolio for this type of product at Santander UK.

- Illiquid CDOs and CLOs in the portfolio of the treasury unit in Madrid. These are measured by
grouping together the securities by type of underlying (sector/country), payment hierarchy (prime,
mezzanine, junior, etc.), and assuming forecast conditional prepayment rates (CPR) and default
rates, adopting conservative criteria.

- Derivatives on baskets of shares. These are measured using advanced local and stochastic volatility
models, through Monte Carlo simulations; the main unobservable input is the correlation between the
prices of the shares in each basket in question.

- Callable interest rate derivatives (Bermudan-style options) where the main unobservable input is
mean reversion of interest rates.

During 2016, the Group, to which the Bank belongs, carried out a review of its financial instruments
valuation processes with the purpose of increasing the observability of certain inputs and parameters used
in its valuation techniques. As a result of this review, it has started to contribute prices of interest rate
derivatives with the option of a clear type of discount for EUR and USD and correlations between pairs of
shares to services of consensus pricing, which has allowed to incorporate the inputs obtained directly or
inferred from instrument prices, in their internal valuation processes. As a consequence, those non-
observable inputs (the parameter of the reversion to the average of the interest rates and the correlations
between shares, respectively) used in the valuation of interest rate derivatives with the option of cancelling
type EUR and USD and derivatives on Stock baskets have become measurable and considered
observable parameters, and therefore, these products have been reclassified from Level 3 to Level 2.

The measurements obtained using the internal models might have been different if other methods or
assumptions had been used with respect to interest rate risk, to credit risk, market risk and foreign
currency risk spreads, or to their related correlations and volatilities. Nevertheless, the Bank’s directors
consider that the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet and the gains and losses arising from these financial instruments are reasonable.
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The net loss recognised in profit or loss in 2016 arising from models whose significant inputs are
unobservable market data amounted EUR 60 million (2015: a loss of 28 EUR miillion).

The table below shows the effect, at 31 December 2016, on the fair value of the main financial instruments
classified as Level 3 of a reasonable change in the assumptions used in the valuation. This effect was
determined by applying the probable valuation ranges of the main unobservable inputs detailed in the
following table:
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Portfolio / Instrument

Impacts (in millions of euros)

Weighted | Unfavourable | Favourable
(Level 3) Valuation technigue Main unobservable inputs Range average scenario scenario
Financial assets held for trading
Debt and equity instruments Partial differential equations Long-term volatility 27%-41% 40.37% (0.01) 0.2
Derivatives Present Value Method Curves on TAB indices (*) (a) (a) (1.7) 17
Present Value Method, Modified Black-Scholes Model | HPI forward growth rate 0%-5% 2.79% (34.8) 27.6
Present Value Method, Modified Black-Scholes Model | HPI spot rate nfa 747.48 (**) (10.4) 104
Standard Gaussian Copula Model Probability of default 0%-5% 2.71% (0.8) 0.9
Other financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Probability-weighted set (per forecast mortality rates)
Customers of European HPI options, using the Black-Scholes
model HPI forward growth rate 0%-5% 2.84% (8.0) 6.0
Debt and equity instruments Probability-weighted set (per forecast mortality rates)
of HPI forwards, using the present value model HPI forward growth rate 0%-5% 2.79% (39.7) 315
HPI spot rate n/a 747.48 (**) (21.3) 213
Financial assets available-for-sale
L Default and prepayment rates, cost of
Debt and equity instruments Present Value Method and other capital, long-term earnings growth rate @) @) - -
Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivatives Present Value Method, Modified Black-Scholes Model | HPI forward growth rate 0%-5% 2.71% 9.9) 117
Present Value Method, Modified Black-Scholes Model | HPI spot rate na 702.11(**) (10.7) 10.9
Present Value Method, Modified Black-Scholes Curves on TAB indices (*) (@) (@) - -
Model
Hedging derivatives (liabilities) Advanced multi-factor interest rate models Mean reversion of interest rates 0.0001-0.03 1.0% - -
Financial liabilities designated at R _ R R ®) ®)

fair value through profit or loss

(*) TAB: “Tasa Activa Bancaria” (Active Bank Rate). Average interest rates on 30-, 90-, 180- and 360-day deposits published by the Chilean Association of Banks and Financial
Institutions (ABIF) in nominal currency (Chilean peso) and in real terms, adjusted for inflation (in Chilean unit of account (Unidad de Fomento - UF)).

(**) There are national and regional HPIs. The HPI spot value is the weighted average of the indices that correspond to the positions of each portfolio. The impact reported is in response

to a 10% shift.

(***) Theoretical average value of the parameter. The change made for the favourable scenario is from 0001 to 0.03. An unfavourable scenario was not considered as there was no margin
for downward movement from the parameter's current level. The Bank is also exposed, to a lesser extent, to this type of derivative in currencies other than the euro and, therefore,
both the average and the range of the unobservable inputs are different. The impact in an unfavourable scenario would be losses of EUR 0.1 million.

(@) The exercise was conducted for the unobservable inputs described in the Main unobservable inputs column under probable scenarios. The range and weighted average value used
are not shown because the aforementioned exercise was conducted jointly for various inputs or variants thereof (e.g. the TAB input comprises vector-time curves, for which there are
also nominal yield curves and inflation-indexed yield curves), and it was not possible to break down the results separately by type of input. In the case of the TAB curve the gain or
loss is reported for changes of +/-100 b.p. for the total sensitivity to this index in Chilean pesos and UFs.

(b) The Group calculates the potential effect on the valuation of each of these instruments on a joint basis, irrespective of whether their individual value is positive (asset) or negative
(liability), and discloses the joint effect associated with the corresponding instruments classified on the asset side of the consolidated balance sheet.
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Lastly, the changes in the financial instruments classified as Level 3 in 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

2015 Changes 2016

Fair value

Fair value Changes in calculated
calculated using Changes in fair fair value using internal

internal models value recognised recognised Level models

Millions of euros (Level 3) Purchases Sales Issues Settlements in profit or loss in equity reclassifications | Other (Level 3)
Financial assets held for trading 950 - (157) - - 52 - (489) (15) 341
Debt and equity instruments 43 - (5) - - 3 - - 1) 40
Derivatives 907 - (152) - - 49 - (489) (14) 301
Swaps 54 - - - - ®3) - - 4 55
Exchange rate options - - - - - 2 - - - 2
Interest rate options 619 - (52) - - 39 - (433) - 173
Index and securities options 120 - (30) - - 3) - (56) (5) 26
Other 114 - (70) - - 14 - -l @) 45
Hedging derivatives (Assets) 18 - 4) - - 13 - - - 27
Swaps 18 - 4) - - 13 - - - 27
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 514 - ) - (104) 6 - ) (82) 325
Loans and advances to customers 81 - - - - 5 - - 12) 74
Debt instruments 283 - 7) - - 1 - - (40) 237
Equity instruments 150 - - - (104) - - ) (30) 14
Financial assets available-for-sale 999 37 (263) - (28) - (11) (29) (49) 656
TOTAL ASSETS 2,481 37 (431) - (132) 71 (11) (520) | (146) 1,349
Financial liabilities held for trading 302 - (34) - - 10 - (199) (10) 69
Derivatives 302 - (34) - - 10 - (199) (10) 69
Swaps 1 - - - - - - - - 1
Interest rate options 194 - (19) - - 1 - (155) - 21
Index and securities options 107 - (15) - - 8 - (44) (10) 46
Other - - - - - 1 - - - 1
Hedging derivatives (Liabilities) 11 - 3) - - 1 - - - 9
Swaps 11 - 3) - - 1 - - - 9
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss 11 - - - - - - - 3) 8
TOTAL LIABILITIES 324 _ 37 - - 11 - (199) (13) 86
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2014 Changes 2015
Fair value
Fair value calculated
calculated Changes in fair | Changes in using
using internal value fair value Level internal
models (Level recognised in recognised |reclassifications models

Millions of euros 3) Purchases | Sales | Issues | Settlements profit or loss in equity Other | (Level 3)
Financial assets held for trading 1,191 -1 (272) - - 24 - ) 9 950
Debt and equity instruments 85 - (38) - - ©)] - ) 1 43
Derivatives 1,106 -1 (234) - - 27 - - 8 907
Swaps 116 -1 63) - - 2 . . 1) 54
Interest rate options 768 - (119) - - (28) - - ) 619
Index and securities options 111 - (45) - - 51 - - 3 120
Other 111 7) - - 2 - - 8 114
Hedging derivatives (Assets) - - - - - 1 - 17 - 18
Swaps - - - - - 1 - 17 - 18
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 680 7 (47) - - (64) - -1 (62) 514
Loans and advances to customers 78 - (5) - - 2 - - 6 81
Debt instruments and Equity instruments 602 7 (42) - - (66) - - (68) 433
Financial assets available-for-sale 716 18 (75) - (72) - 271 139 2 999
TOTAL ASSETS 2,587 25| (394) - (72) (39) 271 154 | (51) 2,481
Financial liabilities held for trading 536 41 (230) - - (15) - - 7 302
Derivatives 536 41 (230) - - (15) - - 7 302
Swaps 49 - (47) - - @ - - - 1
Interest rate options 294 - (71) - - (30) - - 1 194
Index and securities options 193 41 (112) - - 16 - - 6 107
Hedging derivatives (Liabilities) - - (16) - - 8 - 5 14 11
Swaps - - (16) - - 8 - 5 14 11
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss 16 - ) - - 4) - - 8 11
TOTAL LIABILITIES 552 4| (255) - - (11) - 5 29 324
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iv. Recognition of fair value changes

As a general rule, changes in the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the
income statement. A distinction is made between the changes resulting from the accrual of interest and
similar items, which are recognised under Interest income or Interest expense, as appropriate, and those
arising for other reasons, which are recognised at their net amount under Gains/losses on financial assets
and liabilities.

Adjustments due to changes in fair value arising from:

- Financial assets available-for-sale are recognised temporarily under Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss - Financial assets available-for-sale, unless they relate to exchange differences, in which
case they are recognised in Other comprehensive income under Items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss - Exchange differences (net), or to exchange differences arising on monetary financial assets, in
which case they are recognised in Exchange differences (net) in the income statement.

- Items charged or credited to Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - Financial assets available-
for-sale and Other comprehensive income - Iltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss - Exchange
differences in equity remain in the Group's consolidated equity until the asset giving rise to them is
impaired or derecognised, at which time they are recognised in the income statement.

- Unrealised gains on Financial assets available-for-sale classified as Non-current assets held for sale
because they form part of a disposal group or a discontinued operation are recognised in Other
comprehensive income under Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - Non-current assets held
for sale.

v. Hedging transactions

The Bank uses financial derivatives for the following purposes: i) to facilitate these instruments to
customers who request them in the management of their market and credit risks; ii) to use these
derivatives in the management of the risks of the Bank's own positions and assets and liabilities (hedging
derivatives); and iii) to obtain gains from changes in the prices of these derivatives (derivatives).

Financial derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are treated for accounting purposes as
trading derivatives.

A derivative qualifies for hedge accounting if all the following conditions are met:
1. The derivative hedges one of the following three types of exposure:
a. Changes in the fair value of assets and liabilities due to fluctuations, among others, in the interest
rate and/or exchange rate to which the position or balance to be hedged is subject (fair value

hedge);

b. Changes in the estimated cash flows arising from financial assets and liabilities, commitments and
highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedge);

c. The net investment in a foreign operation (hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation).

2. It is effective in offsetting exposure inherent in the hedged item or position throughout the expected
term of the hedge, which means that:

a. At the date of arrangement the hedge is expected, under normal conditions, to be highly effective
(prospective effectiveness).
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b. There is sufficient evidence that the hedge was actually effective during the whole life of the hedged
item or position (retrospective effectiveness). To this end, the Bank checks that the results of the
hedge were within a range of 80% to 125% of the results of the hedged item.

3. There must be adequate documentation evidencing the specific designation of the financial derivative
to hedge certain balances or transactions and how this hedge was expected to be achieved and
measured, provided that this is consistent with the Group's management of own risks.

The changes in value of financial instruments qualifying for hedge accounting are recognised as
follows:

a. In fair value hedges, the gains or losses arising on both the hedging instruments and the hedged
items attributable to the type of risk being hedged are recognised directly in the income statement.

In fair value hedges of interest rate risk on a portfolio of financial instruments, the gains or losses
that arise on measuring the hedging instruments are recognised directly in the income statement,
whereas the gains or losses due to changes in the fair value of the hedged amount (attributable to
the hedged risk) are recognised in the income statement with a balancing entry under Changes in
the fair value of hedged items in portfolio hedges of interest rate risk on the asset or liability side of
the balance sheet, as appropriate.

b. In cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the change in value of the hedging instrument is
recognised temporarily in Other comprehensive income under items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss — Hedging derivatives - Cash flow hedges (effective portion) until the forecast
transactions occur, when it is recognised in the income statement, unless, if the forecast
transactions result in the recognition of non-financial assets or liabilities, it is included in the cost of
the non-financial asset or liability.

c. In hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation, the gains or losses attributable to the portion
of the hedging instruments qualifying as an effective hedge are recognised temporarily in Other
comprehensive income under Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss - Hedges of net
investments in foreign operations until the gains or losses on the hedged item are recognised in
profit or loss.

d. The ineffective portion of the gains or losses on the hedging instruments of cash flow hedges and
hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation is recognised directly under Gains/losses on
financial assets and liabilities (net) in the consolidated income statement, in Gains or losses from
hedge accounting, net

If a derivative designated as a hedge no longer meets the requirements described above due to expiration,
ineffectiveness or for any other reason, the derivative is classified for accounting purposes as a trading
derivative.

When fair value hedge accounting is discontinued, the adjustments previously recognised on the hedged
item are amortised to profit or loss at the effective interest rate recalculated at the date of hedge
discontinuation. The adjustments must be fully amortised at maturity.

When cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recognised in equity under Other comprehensive income — ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
(from the period when the hedge was effective) remains in this equity item until the forecast transaction
occurs, at which time it is recognised in profit or loss, unless the transaction is no longer expected to
occur, in which case the cumulative gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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e)

vi. Derivatives embedded in hybrid financial instruments

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or in other host contracts are accounted for separately
as derivatives if their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts,
provided that the host contracts are not classified as financial assets/liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss or as Financial assets/liabilities held for trading.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

The accounting treatment of transfers of financial assets depends on the extent to which the risks and
rewards associated with the transferred assets are transferred to third parties:

1.

If the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards to third parties unconditional sale of
financial assets, sale of financial assets under an agreement to repurchase them at their fair value at
the date of repurchase, sale of financial assets with a purchased call option or written put option that is
deeply out of the money, securitisation of assets in which the transferor does not retain a subordinated
debt or grant any credit enhancement to the new holders, and other similar cases-, the transferred
financial asset is derecognised and any rights or obligations retained or created in the transfer are
recognised simultaneously.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the transferred financial
asset -sale of financial assets under an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price or at the sale
price plus interest, a securities lending agreement in which the borrower undertakes to return the same
or similar assets, and other similar cases-, the transferred financial asset is not derecognised and
continues to be measured by the same criteria as those used before the transfer. However, the
following items are recognised:

a. An associated financial liability, which is recognised for an amount equal to the consideration
received and is subsequently measured at amortised cost, unless it meets the requirements for
classification under Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

b. The income from the transferred financial asset not derecognised and any expense incurred on
the new financial liability, without offsetting.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the
transferred financial asset -sale of financial assets with a purchased call option or written put option
that is not deeply in or out of the money, securitisation of assets in which the transferor retains a
subordinated debt or other type of credit enhancement for a portion of the transferred asset, and other
similar cases- the following distinction is made:

a. If the transferor does not retain control of the transferred financial asset, the asset is
derecognised and any rights or obligations retained or created in the transfer are recognised.

b. If the transferor retains control of the transferred financial asset, it continues to recognise it for an
amount equal to its exposure to changes in value and recognises a financial liability associated
with the transferred financial asset. The net carrying amount of the transferred asset and the
associated liability is the amortised cost of the rights and obligations retained, if the transferred
asset is measured at amortised cost, or the fair value of the rights and obligations retained, if the
transferred asset is measured at fair value.
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f) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial asset and liability balances are offset, i.e. reported in the balance sheet at their net amount, only
if the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to

settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Following is the detail of financial assets and liabilities that were offset in the balance sheets as at 31
December 2016 and 2015:

Millions of euros
2016 2015
Net amount Net amount
Gross amount | of financial Gross amount | of financial
of financial assets of financial assets
Gross amount | liabilities presented in | Gross amount |  liabilities presented in
of financial | offsetinthe | the balance of financial | offsetinthe | the balance
Assets assets balance sheet sheet assets balance sheet sheet
Derivatives 82,414 (34,873) 47,541 89,409 (34,719) 54,690
Repos 22,601 - 22,601 40,747 - 40,747
Millions of euros
2016 2015
Net amount Net amount
Gross amount | of financial Gross amount | of financial
of financial liabilities of financial liabilities
Gross amount | assets offset | presented in | Gross amount | assets offset | presented in
of financial |in the balance | the balance of financial |in the balance | the balance
Liabilities liabilities sheet sheet liabilities sheet sheet
Derivatives 86,045 (34,873) 51,172 89,609 (34,719) 54,890
Repos 19,029 - 19,029 36,180 - 36,180

Most of the derivatives and repos not offset in the balance sheet are subject to netting and collateral

arrangements.

At 31 December 2016 the balance sheet amounts EUR 53,141 million on derivatives and repos as assets
and EUR 55,299 million on derivatives and repos as liabilities that are subject to netting and collateral

arrangements.
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g) Impairment of financial assets
i. Definition

A financial asset is considered to be impaired -and therefore its carrying amount is adjusted to reflect the
effect of impairment- when there is objective evidence that events have occurred which:

- In the case of debt instruments (loans and debt securities), give rise to an adverse impact on the
future cash flows that were estimated at the transaction date.

- Inthe case of equity instruments, mean that their carrying amount may not be fully recovered.

As a general rule, the adjustment of the value of the impaired financial instruments is charged to the
consolidated income statement for the period in which the impairment becomes evident, and the reversal,
if any, of previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
period in which the impairment is reversed or reduced.

Transactions classified as non-performing due to arrears are reclassified as standard if, as a result of the
collection of a portion or the sum of the unpaid instalments, the reasons for classifying such transactions
as non-performing cease to exist, i.e. they no longer have any amount more than 90 days past due, unless
other subjective reasons remain for classifying them as non-performing. The refinancing of non-performing
loans does not result in their reclassification to standard unless: the period of one year has elapsed since
the refinancing date, the holder has paid the accrued principal and interest accounts, and the customer
has no other operation with overdue amounts of more than 90 days. (see Note 49).

The following constitute effective guarantees:

a) Mortgage guarantees on housing as long as they are first duly constituted and registered in favor of
the entity; the properties include:

a. Buildings and building elements, distinguishing among:

i. Houses;
ii. Offices commercial and multi-purpose premises;
iii. Rest of buildings such as non-multi-purpose premises and hotels.

b. Urban and developable ordered land.

c. Rest of properties that would be classified in: buildings and building elements under
construction, such as property development in progress and halted development, and the
rest of land types, such as rustic lands.

b) Collateral guarantees on financial instruments in the form of cash deposits and debt securities issued
by creditworthy issuers.

c) Other types real guarantees, including properties received in guarantee and second and subsequent
mortgages on properties, as long as the entity demonstrates its effectiveness. When assessing the
effectiveness of the second and subsequent mortgages on properties the entity will implement
particularly restrictive criteria. It will take into account, among others, whether the previous charges
are in favour of the entity itself or not and the relationship between the risk guaranteed by them and
the property value.
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d) Personal guarantees, as well as the incorporation of new owners, covering the entire amount of the
transaction and implying direct and joint liability to the entity of persons other entities whose solvency
is sufficiently proven to ensure the reimbursement of the operation on the agreed terms.

The balances relating to impaired assets continue to be recognised on the balance sheet, for their full
amounts, until the Bank considers that the recovery of those amounts is remote.

The Bank considers recovery to be remote when there has been a substantial and irreversible
deterioration of the borrower's solvency, when commencement of the liquidation phase of insolvency
proceedings has been ordered or when more than four years have elapsed since the borrower's
transaction was classified as non-performing due to arrears.

When the recovery of a financial asset is considered remote, it is written off, together with the related
allowance, without prejudice to any actions that the Bank may initiate to seek collection until its contractual
rights are extinguished due to expiry of the statute-of-limitations period, forgiveness or any other cause.

ii. Debt instruments carried at amortised cost

The Bank has certain policies, methods and procedures for covering its credit risk arising both from
insolvency allocable to counterparties and from country risk. These policies, methods and procedures are
applied in the granting, examination and documentation of debt instruments and contingent liabilities as
well as commitments, and in the identification of their impairment and the calculation of the amounts
required to cover the related credit risk.

In addition, the Bank's policies, methods and procedures in relation to insolvency credit risk reflect the
criteria for classification of operations and the coverage of losses therefrom, included in Circular 4/2016,
of April 27, Bank of Spain. It amends certain Regulations of Circular 4/2004 of December 22, specifically
the Sixty-Sixth, Sixty-Fourth and Sixty-seventh Norms, as well as Annex IX, the contents of which are
included as Appendice 1 to Circular 4/2016. (See Note 1.b)

Impairment losses allowances on debt instruments carried at amortised cost represent the best
management estimate of the incurred losses in such portfolio at closing date, both individually and
collectively considered. For the purpose of determining impairment losses, the Group monitors its debtors
as described below:

- Individually: Significant debt instruments where impairment evidence exists. Consequently, this
category includes mainly wholesale banking clients — Corporations, Earmarked Funding and
Financial Institutions- as well as part of the larger Companies —Chartered- and developers from retail
banking.

At balance sheet date, the group assesses on whether a debt instrument or a Bank is impaired. A
specific analysis is performed for all debtors monitored individually that have undergone an event
such as:
- Operations with amounts of capital, interests or expenditures agreed contractually, past-due
by more than 90 days.

- Significantly inadequate economic or financial structure, or inability to obtain additional
owner financing.

- Generalised delay in payments or insufficient cash flows to COVER debts.

- The lender, for economic or legal reasons related to the borrower's financial difficulties,
grants the borrower concessions or advantages that otherwise would not have been
granted.
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- Thee borrower enters a bankruptcy situation or in any other situation of financial
reorganisation

In these situations, an assessment is performed on the estimated future cash flows in connection
with the relevant asset, discounted the original effective interest rate of the loan granted. The result
is compared with the carrying value of the asset. The differences between the carrying value of the
operation and the discounted value of the cash flow estimate will be analysed and recognised as a
specific provision for impairment loss.

Collectively, in all other cases: clients considered by the Bank as “standardized”, grouping those
instruments with similar credit risk features, that may indicate the debtor's ability to pay all the
amounts, capital and interests, according to the contractual terms. Credit risk features that are taken
into account when grouping assets are, among others: type of instrument, debtors activity sector,
geographical area of the activity, type of guarantee, maturity of the amounts due and any other factor
that may be significant for the estimation of the future cash flows. Within this category are included,
for example, risks with individuals, individual entrepreneurs, non-chartered retail banking companies,
as well as those due to their amounts could be individualized but an impairment does not exist.

The collective provisions for impairment are subject to uncertainties in their estimation due, in part, to
the difficult identification of losses since they individually appear insignificant within the portfolio. The
estimation methods include the use of statistical analyses of historical information. These are
supplemented by the application of significant judgments by the management, with the objective of
evaluating if the current economic and credit conditions are such that the level of losses incurred is
expected to be higher or less than that which results from experience.

When the most recent trends related to portfolio risk factors are not fully reflected in statistical models
as a result of changes in economic, regulatory and social conditions, these factors are taken into
account by adjusting impairment provisions based on experience of other historical losses. On these
estimates the Bank performs retrospective and comparative tests with market references to evaluate
the reasonableness of the collective calculation.

The Bank's internal models determine impairment losses on debt instruments not measured at fair
value with changes in the income statement, as well as contingent risks, taking into account the
historical experience of impairment and other circumstances known at the time of the evaluation. For
these purposes, impairment losses are the losses incurred at the date of preparation of the
consolidated annual accounts calculated using statistical procedures.

The amount of an impairment loss incurred on these instruments is equal to the difference between
their carrying amount and the present value of their estimated future cash flows. In estimating the
future cash flows of debt instruments the following factors are taken into account:

o All the amounts that are expected to be obtained over the remaining life of the instrument,
including, where appropriate, those which may result from the collateral provided for the
instrument (less the costs for obtaining and subsequently selling the collateral). The
impairment loss takes into account the likelihood of collecting accrued past-due interest
receivable;

o The various types of risks to which each instrument is subject; and

o The circumstances in which collections will foreseeably be made.

These cash flows are subsequently discounted using the instrument's effective interest rate (if its
contractual rate is fixed) or the effective contractual rate at the discount date (if it is variable).
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The loss incurred is calculated by multiplying three factors: exposure at default, probability of default
and loss given default. These parameters are also used to calculate economic capital and to
calculate BIS Il regulatory capital under internal models (see Note 1.e).

- Exposure at default (EAD) is the amount of risk exposure at the date of default by the
counterparty.

- Probability of default (PD) is the probability of the counterparty failing to meet its principal
and/or interest payment obligations. The probability of default is associated with the
rating/scoring of each counterparty/transaction.

For the purpose of calculating the incurred loss, PD is measured using a time horizon of one
year; i.e. it quantifies the probability of the counterparty defaulting in the coming year due to an
event that had already occurred at the assessment date. The definition of default used includes
amounts past due by 90 days or more and cases in which there is no default but there are
doubts as to the solvency of the counterparty (subjective non-performing assets).

- Severity: is the loss produced in case of impairment. It mainly depends on the update of the
guarantees associated with the operation and the future flows that are expected to be
recovered.

- Loss given default (LGD) is the loss arising in the event of default. It depends mainly on the
discounting of the guarantees associated with the transaction and the future flows that are
expected to be recovered.

In addition, in order to determine the coverage of impairment losses on debt instruments measured at
amortised cost, the Bank considers the risk that exists in counterparties resident in a given country due to
circumstances other than the usual commercial risk (sovereign risk, transfer risk or risks arising from
international financial activity).

The debt instruments measured at amortised cost and classified as doubtful are divided, according to the
criteria indicated in the following sections:

Assets classified as non-performing due to counterparty arrears:

Debt instruments, whoever the obligor and whatever the guarantee or collateral, with amounts
more than 90 days past due are provisioned individually, taking into account the age of the past-
due amounts, the guarantees or collateral provided and the financial situation of the
counterparty and the guarantors.

Assets classified as non-performing for reasons other than counterparty arrears:

Debt instruments which are not classifiable as non-performing due to arrears but for which there
are reasonable doubts as to their repayment under the contractual terms are provisioned
individually, and their allowance is the difference between the amount recognised in assets and
the present value of the cash flows expected to be received.

This information is given in more detail in Note 49.c (Credit risk).
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h) Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements

Purchases (sales) of financial instruments under a non-optional resale (repurchase) agreement at a fixed
price (repos) are recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as financing granted (received), based on
the nature of the debtor (creditor), under Loans and advances with central banks, Loans and advances to
credit institutions or Loans and advances to customers (Deposits from central banks, Deposits from credit
institutions or Customer deposits).

Differences between the purchase and sale prices are recognised as interest over the contract term.
Non-current assets and Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale includes the carrying amount of individual items, disposal groups or items
forming part of a business unit earmarked for disposal (discontinued operations), whose sale in their
present condition is highly likely to be completed within one year from the reporting date. Therefore, the
recovery of the carrying amount of these items -which can be of a financial nature or otherwise- will
foreseeably be effected through the proceeds from their disposal.

Specifically, property or other non-current assets received by the consolidated entities as total or partial
settlement of their debtors' payment obligations to them are deemed to be Non-current assets held for
sale, unless the consolidated entities have decided to make continuing use of these assets. In this
connection, for the purpose of its consideration in the initial recognition of these assets, the Bank obtains,
at the foreclosure date, the fair value of the related asset through a request for appraisal by external
appraisal agencies.

The Bank has in place a corporate policy that ensures the professional competence and the independence
and objectivity of the external appraisal agencies, in accordance with the regulations, which require
appraisal agencies to meet independence, neutrality and credibility requirements, so that the use of their
estimates does not reduce the reliability of its valuations. This policy establishes that all the appraisal
companies and agencies with which the Bank works should be registered in the Official Register of the
Bank of Spain and that the appraisals performed by them should follow the methodology established in
Ministry of Economy Order ECO/805/2003, of 27 March. The main appraisal companies and agencies
with which the Group worked in Spain in 2016 are as follows: Eurovaloraciones, S.A., Ibertasa, S.A., Tinsa
Tasaciones Inmobiliarias, S.A.U., Tasaciones Hipotecarias Renta, S.A., Krata, S.A. and Compafia
Hispania de Tasaciones y Valoraciones, S.A.

Also, this policy establishes that the various subsidiaries abroad work with appraisal companies that have
recent experience in the area and the type of asset under appraisal and meet the independence
requirements established in the corporate policy. They should verify, inter alia, that de appraisal company
is not a related parties to the Bank and that their billings to the Bank in the last twelve months should not
exceed 15% of their total billings.

Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale includes the balances payable arising from the
assets held for sale or disposal groups and from discontinued operations.

Non-current assets and disposal groups of items that have been classified as held for sale are generally
recognised at the date of their allocation to this category and are subsequently valued at the lower of their
fair value less costs to sell and its book value Non-current assets and disposal groups of items that are
classified as held for sale are not amortised as long as they remain in this category.

At 31 December 2016 the fair value less costs to sell of non-current assets held for sale exceeded their
carrying amount by EUR 185 million; however, in accordance with the applicable legislation, this
unrealised gain could not be recognised.

38



The valuation of the non-current assets held for sale have been made in compliance with the requirements
of Circular 4/2016, of April 27, of the Bank of Spain. It amends Circular 4/2004, dated December 22,
specifically, Sixty-sixth, Sixty-Fourth and Sixty-seventh laws, as well as Annex IX, the contents of which
are included as Appendice 1 to Circular 4/2016 related to the estimation of the fair value of tangible assets
and the value in use of financial assets.

The value of the portfolio is determined as the sum of the values of the individual elements that compose
the portfolio, without considering any total or batch grouping in order to correct the individual values.

The valuation of the portfolio of non-current assets held for sale has been carried out basically applying the
following models:

- Market Value Model used in the valuation of finished residential properties (housing and parkings)
and buildings of a tertiary nature (offices, commercial premises and multipurpose buildings). The
current market value of real estate is based on statistical valuations obtained by historical series of
average market values (sales prices), distinguishing by location and typology of the property. In
addition, for individual significant assets, complete individual valuations are performed. Valuations
made using this method are considered as Level 2.

- Market Value Model according to the Evolution of Market Values issused in the valuation of property
developments in progress. The current market value of the properties is estimated on the basis of
complete individual static valuations of third parties, calculated from the values of feasibility studies
and development costs of the promotion, as well as selling expenses, distinguishing by location and
typology of the property. The valuation of real estate assets under construction is made considering
the current situation of the property and not considering the final value of the property. Valuations
made using this method are considered as Level 3.

- Market Value Model according to the Statistical Evolution of Soil Values (Methodology used in the
valuation of soils). A statistical update method is used, taking as reference the indexes published by
the Ministry of Development applied to the latest individual valuations (appraisals) carried out by
independent valuation companies and agencies. Valuations made using this method are considered
as Level 2.

In addition, in relation to the previously mentioned valuations, less selling costs, are contrasted with the
sales experience of each type of asset in order to confirm that there is no significant difference between
the sale price and the valuation.

Impairment losses on an asset or disposal group arising from a reduction in its carrying amount to its fair
value (less costs to sell) are recognised under Gains or (losses) on non-current assets held for sale not
classified as discontinued operations in the consolidated income statement. The gains on a non-current
asset held for sale resulting from subsequent increases in fair value (less costs to sell) increase its carrying
amount and are recognised in the consolidated income statement up to an amount equal to the impairment
losses previously recognised.

Reinsurance Assets and Liabilities under insurance contracts

Insurance contracts linked to pensions on the asset side of the balance sheet, included in the section
Other assets (Note 2.n) includes the amounts that the Bank is entitled to receive for insurance contracts
with third parties and, specifically, the insurer's share of the technical provisions recorded by the insurance
entities

At least once a year these assets are reviewed to ascertain whether they are impaired (i.e. there is
objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the reinsurance asset,
that the Bank may not receive all amounts due to it under the terms of the contract and the amount that will
not be received can be reliably measured), and any impairment loss is recognised in the income statement
and the assets are written down.
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k) Tangible assets

Tangible assets includes the amount of buildings, land, furniture, vehicles, computer hardware and other
fixtures owned by the Bank or acquired under finance leases. Tangible assets are classified by use as
follows:

i. Property, plant and equipment for own use

Property, plant and equipment for own use -including tangible assets received by the Bank in full or partial
satisfaction of financial assets representing receivables from third parties which are intended to be held for
continuing use and tangible assets acquired under finance leases- are presented at acquisition cost, less
the related accumulated depreciation and any estimated impairment losses (carrying amount higher than
recoverable amount).

Depreciation is calculated, using the straight-line method, on the basis of the acquisition cost of the assets
less their residual value. The land on which the buildings and other structures stand has an indefinite life
and, therefore, is not depreciated.

The period tangible asset depreciation charge is recognized in the income statement and is calculated
using the following depreciation rates (based on the average years of estimated useful life of the various
assets):

Annual

rate
Buildings for own use 2
Furniture 10
Fixtures 5
Computer equipment 25
Vehicles 16
Other 5

The Bank assesses at the reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired
(i.e. its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount). If this is the case, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and future depreciation charges are adjusted in proportion to
the revised carrying amount and to the new remaining useful life (if the useful life has to be re-estimated).

Similarly, if there is an indication of a recovery in the value of a tangible asset, the Bank recognises the
reversal of the impairment loss recognised in prior periods and adjust the future depreciation charges
accordingly. In no circumstances may the reversal of an impairment loss on an asset raise its carrying
amount above that which it would have if no impairment losses had been recognized in prior years.

The estimated useful lives of the items of property, plant and equipment for own use are reviewed at least
at the end of the reporting period with a view to detecting significant changes therein. If changes are
detected, the useful lives of the assets are adjusted by correcting the depreciation charge to be recognised
in the income statement in future years on the basis of the new useful lives.

Upkeep and maintenance expenses relating to property, plant and equipment for own use are recognized
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, since they do not increase the useful lives of the
assets.
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ii. Investment property

Investment property reflects the net values of the land, buildings and other structures held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation.

The criteria used to recognise the acquisition cost of investment property, to calculate its depreciation and
its estimated useful life and to recognise any impairment losses thereon are consistent with those
described in relation to property, plant and equipment for own use.

iii. Assets leased out under an operating lease

Property, plant and equipment - Leased out under an operating lease reflects the amount of the tangible
assets, other than land and buildings, leased out by the Bank under an operating lease.

The criteria used to recognise the acquisition cost of assets leased out under operating leases, to calculate
their depreciation and their respective estimated useful lives and to recognise the impairment losses
thereon are consistent with those described in relation to property, plant and equipment for own use.

Accounting for leases
i. Finance leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the leased asset to the lessee.

When the Bank acts as the lessor of an asset, the sum of the present value of the lease payments
receivable from the lessee, including the exercise price of the lessee’s purchase option at the end of the
lease term when such exercise price is sufficiently below fair value at the option date such that it is
reasonably certain that the option will be exercised, is recognised as lending to third parties and is
therefore included under Loans and receivables in the balance sheet.

When the Bank acts as the lessee, it presents the cost of the leased assets in the balance sheet, based on
the nature of the leased asset, and, simultaneously, recognises a liability for the same amount (which is
the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the sum of the present value of the lease payments
payable to the lessor plus, if appropriate, the exercise price of the purchase option). The depreciation
policy for these assets is consistent with that for property, plant and equipment for own use.

In both cases, the finance income and finance charges arising under finance lease agreements are
credited and debited, respectively, to Interest and similar income and Interest expense and similar charges
in the income statement so as to produce a constant rate of return over the lease term.

ii. Operating leases

In operating leases, ownership of the leased asset and substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
thereto remain with the lessor.

When the Bank acts as the lessor, it presents the acquisition cost of the leased assets under Tangible
assets (see Note 15). The depreciation policy for these assets is consistent with that for similar items of
property, plant and equipment for own use, and income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis under Other operating income in the income statements.

When the Bank acts as the lessee, the lease expenses, including any incentives granted by the lessor, are
charged on a straight-line basis to Other general administrative expenses in the income statement.
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iii. Sale and leaseback transactions

In sale and leaseback transactions where the sale is at fair value and the leaseback is an operating lease,
any profit or loss is recognised at the time of sale. In the case of finance leasebacks, any profit or loss is
amortised over the lease term.

m) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets (separable from other assets) without physical
substance which arise as a result of a legal transaction or which are developed internally by the Bank.
Only assets whose cost can be estimated reliably and from which the Bank considers it probable that
future economic benefits will be generated are recognised.

Intangible assets are recognised initially at acquisition or production cost and are subsequently measured
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets includes the amount of identifiable intangible assets (such as purchased customer
lists, if any, and computer software).

In accordance with the amendments to Circular 4/2004 introduced by Circular 4/2016 in the Twenty-Eighth
standard, in the financial statements (individual and consolidated) not subject to the International Financial
Reporting Standards framework the Intangible assets will be be recognised with defined useful life.

The useful life of the intangible assets may not exceed the period during which the entity is entitled to use
the asset. If the right of use is for a limited period that can be renewed, the useful life will include the
renewal period only when there is evidence that the renewal will be carried out without a significant cost.

When the useful life of the assets can not be reliably estimated, they will be amortized over a period of ten
years. It shall be presumed, unless proven to the contrary, that the useful life of the goodwill is ten years in
case it applies.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives (three to five years) are amortised over those useful lives using
methods similar to those used to depreciate tangible assets (3 to 5 years). The Bank reviews, at least at
the end of each year, the period and method of amortisation of each of its intangible assets and, if the
Bank considers that they are not adequate, the impact will be treated as a change in the accounting
estimates

The intangible asset amortisation charge is recognised under Depreciation and amortisation charge in the
income statement.

In both cases the Bank recognises any impairment loss on the carrying amount of these assets with a
charge to Impairment losses on other assets (net) in the income statement. The criteria used to recognise
the impairment losses on these assets and, where applicable, the reversal of impairment losses
recognised in prior years are similar to those used for tangible assets (see Note 2.k).

Internally developed computer software

Internally developed computer software is recognised as an intangible asset if, among other requisites
(basically the Bank's ability to use or sell it), it can be identified and its ability to generate future economic
benefits can be demonstrated.

42



Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred and
cannot be subsequently capitalised.

n) Other assets

Other assets in the balance sheet includes the amount of any assets not recorded in other items, the
breakdown being as follows:

Inventories: this item includes the amount of any assets, other than financial instruments, that are held
for sale in the ordinary course of business, that are in the process of production, construction or
development for such purpose, or that are to be consumed in the production process or in the provision
of services. Inventories includes land and other property held for sale in the property development
business.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value, which is the estimated selling
price of the inventories in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs required to make the sale.

Any write-downs of inventories -such as those due to damage, obsolescence or reduction of selling
price- to net realisable value and other impairment losses are recognised as expenses in the year in
which the impairment or loss occurs. Subsequent reversals are recognised in the income statement for
the year in which they occur.

The carrying amount of inventories is derecognised and recognised as an expense in the period in
which the revenue from their sale is recognised.

- Insurance contracts linked to pensions (See Note 2.j)

Other: this item includes, as the case may be, the balance of all prepayments and accrued income
(excluding accrued interest, fees and commissions), the net amount of the difference between pension
plan obligations and the value of the plan assets with a balance in the entity's favour, when this net
amount is to be reported in the balance sheet, and the amount of any other assets not included in other
items.

fi) Other liabilities

Other liabilities includes the balance of all accrued expenses and deferred income, excluding accrued
interest, and the amount of any other liabilities not included in other categories.

0) Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities

When preparing the Bank's financial statements, the Bank’s directors made a distinction between:

Provisions: credit balances covering present obligations at the reporting date arising from past events
which could give rise to a loss for the Bank, which is considered to be likely to occur and certain as to
its nature but uncertain as to its amount and/or timing.
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p)

- Contingent liabilities: possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the
control of the Bank. They include the present obligations of the Bank when it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle them. The Bank should not
proceed to recognise a contingent obligation. On the contrary, it must report on the obligation in the
financial statements, except in the case that the possibility of an outflow embodying economic benefits
is remote.

- Contingent assets: possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence is conditional on,
and will be confirmed only by, the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Bank. Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheet or
in the income statement, but rather are disclosed in the notes, provided that it is probable that these
assets will give rise to an increase in resources embodying economic benefits.

The Bank's financial statements include all the material provisions with respect to which it is considered
that it is more likely than not that the obligation will have to be settled. In accordance with accounting
standards, contingent liabilities must not be recognised in the financial statements, but must rather be
disclosed in the notes.

Provisions, which are quantified on the basis of the best information available on the consequences of the
event giving rise to them and are reviewed and adjusted at the end of each year, are used to cater for the
specific obligations for which they were originally recognised. Provisions are fully or partially reversed
when such obligations cease to exist or are reduced.

Provisions are classified according to the obligations covered as follows (see Note 23):

- Provision for pensions and similar obligations: includes the amount of all the provisions made to cover
post-employment benefits, including obligations to pre-retirees and similar obligations (Note 2.u)

- Provisions for commitments and guarantees given: include the amount of the provisions made to
cover contingent liabilities -defined as those transactions in which the Bank guarantees the obligations
of a third party, arising as a result of financial guarantees granted or contracts of another kind- and
contingent commitments -defined as irrevocable commitments that may give rise to the recognition of
financial assets.

- Provisions for taxes and other legal contingencies: include the amount of the provisions recognised to
cover tax and legal contingencies and litigation and the other provisions recognised by the Bank.

- Other provisions: include the remaining provisions recognised by the Bank as the ones for
restructuring and environmental actions.

Court proceedings and/or claims in process

In addition to the disclosures made in Note 1, at the end of 2015 certain court proceedings and claims
were in process against the Group entities arising from the ordinary course of their operations (see Note
23).
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s)

Own equity instruments
Own equity instruments are those meeting both of the following conditions:

- The instruments do not include any contractual obligation for the issuer: (i) to deliver cash or another
financial asset to a third party; or (ii) to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with a third party
under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer.

- The instruments will or may be settled in the issuer's own equity instruments and are: (i) a non-
derivative that includes no contractual obligation for the issuer to deliver a variable number of its own
equity instruments; or (ii) a derivative that will be settled by the issuer through the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

Transactions involving own equity instruments, including their issuance and cancellation, are charged
directly to equity.

Changes in the value of instruments classified as own equity instruments are not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. Consideration received or paid in exchange for such instruments,
including the coupons on preference shares contingently convertible into ordinary shares, is directly added
to or deducted from equity.

Equity-instrument-based employee remuneration

Own equity instruments delivered to employees in consideration for their services, if the instruments are
delivered once the specific period of service has ended, are recognised as an expense for services (with
the corresponding increase in equity) as the services are rendered by employees during the service
period. At the grant date the services received (and the related increase in equity) are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted. If the equity instruments granted are vested immediately, the Bank
recognises in full, at the grant date, the expense for the services received.

When the requirements stipulated in the remuneration agreement include external market conditions (such
as equity instruments reaching a certain quoted price), the amount ultimately to be recognised in equity will
depend on the other conditions being met by the employees (normally length of service requirements),
irrespective of whether the market conditions are satisfied. If the conditions of the agreement are met but
the external market conditions are not satisfied, the amounts previously recognised in equity are not
reversed, even if the employees do not exercise their right to receive the equity instruments.

Recognition of income and expenses

The most significant criteria used by the Bank to recognise income and expenses are summarised as
follows:

i. Interest income, interest expenses and similar items

Interest income, interest expenses and similar items are generally recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method. Dividends received from other companies are recognised as income when
the Bank's right to receive them arises.
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t)

However, the recognition of accrued interest in the income statement is suspended for debt instruments
individually classified as impaired and for the instruments for which impairment losses have been
assessed collectively because they have payments more than 90 days past due. Any interest that may
have been recognised in the income statement before the corresponding debt instruments were classified
as impaired, and that had not been collected at the date of that classification, is considered when
determining the allowance for loan losses; accordingly, if subsequently collected, the reversal of the
related impairment losses on this interest is recognised. Interest whose recognition in the income
statement has been suspended is accounted for as interest income, when collected, on a cash basis.

ii. Commissions, fees and similar items

Fee and commission income and expenses are recognised in the income statement using criteria that vary
according to their nature. The main criteria are as follows:

- Fee and commission income and expenses relating to financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognised when paid.

- Those arising from transactions or services that are performed over a period of time are recognised
over the life of these transactions or services.

- Those relating to services provided in a single act are recognised when the single act is carried out.
iii. Non-finance income and expenses

These are recognised for accounting purposes on an accrual basis.

iv. Deferred collections and payments

These are recognised for accounting purposes at the amount resulting from discounting the expected cash
flows at market rates.

v. Loan arrangement fees

Loan arrangement fees, mainly loan origination, application and information fees, are accrued and
recognised in income over the term of the loan. In the case of loan origination fees, the portion relating to
the associated direct costs incurred in the loan arrangement is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are defined as contracts whereby an entity undertakes to make specific payments on
behalf of a third party if the latter fails to do so, irrespective of the various legal forms they may have, such
as guarantees, insurance policies or credit derivatives.

The Bank initially recognises the financial guarantees provided on the liability side of the balance sheet at
fair value, which is generally the present value of the fees, commissions and interest receivable from these
contracts over the term thereof, and simultaneously the Bank recognises the amount of the fees,
commissions and similar interest received at the inception of the transactions and a credit on the asset
side of the balance sheet for the present value of the fees, commissions and interest outstanding.
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Financial guarantees, regardless of the guarantor, instrumentation or other circumstances, are reviewed
periodically so as to determine the credit risk to which they are exposed and, if appropriate, to consider
whether a provision is required. The credit risk is determined by application of criteria similar to those
established for quantifying impairment losses on debt instruments carried at amortised cost (described in
Note 2.g above).

The provisions made for these transactions are recognised under Provisions - Provisions for contingent
liabilities and commitments and guarantees given in the balance sheet (See note 23). These provisions
are recognised and reversed with a charge or credit, respectively, to Provisions (net) in the income
statement.

If a specific provision is required for financial guarantees, the related unearned commissions recognised
under Financial liabilities at amortised cost - Other financial liabilities in the balance sheet are reclassified
to the appropriate provision.

Post-employment benefits

Under the collective agreements currently in force and other arrangements, the Bank has undertaken to
supplement the public social security system benefits accruing to certain employees, and to their
beneficiary right holders, for retirement, permanent disability or death, and the post-employment welfare
benefits.

The Bank's post-employment obligations to its employees are deemed to be defined contribution plans
when the Bank makes pre-determined contributions (recognised under Staff costs in the income
statement) to a separate entity and will have no legal or effective obligation to make further contributions if
the separate entity cannot pay the employee benefits relating to the service rendered in the current and
prior periods. Post-employment obligations that do not meet the aforementioned conditions are classified
as defined benefit plans (see Note 23).

Defined contribution plans

The contributions made in this connection in each year are recognised under Staff costs in the income
statement. The amounts not yet contributed at each year-end are recognised, at their present value, under
Provisions - Provision for pensions and similar obligations on the liability side of the balance sheet.

Defined benefit plans

The Bank recognises under Provisions - Provision for pensions and similar obligations on the liability side
of the balance sheet (or under Other assets on the asset side, as appropriate) the present value of its
defined benefit post-employment obligations, net of the fair value of the plan assets.

Plan assets are defined as those that will be directly used to settle obligations and that meet the following
conditions:

- They are not owned by the Bank, but by a legally separate third party that is not a party related to the
Bank.

- They are only available to pay or fund post-employment benefits and they cannot be returned to the
Bank unless the assets remaining in the plan are sufficient to meet all the benefit obligations of the plan
and of the entity to current and former employees, or they are returned to reimburse employee benefits
already paid by the Bank.
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v)

w)

If the Bank can look to an insurer to pay part or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation, and it is practically certain that said insurer will reimburse some or all of the expenditure
required to settle that obligation, but the insurance policy does not qualify as a plan asset, the Bank
recognises its right to reimbursement -which, in all other respects, is treated as a plan asset- under
Insurance contracts linked to pensions on the asset side of the balance sheet.

Post-employment benefits are recognised as follows:

- Current service cost, i.e. the increase in the present value of the obligations resulting from
employee service in the current period, is recognised under Staff costs.

- The past service cost, which arises from changes to existing post-employment benefits or from the
introduction of new benefits and includes the cost of reductions, is recognised under Provisions or
reversal of provisions.

- Any gain or loss arising from a liquidation of the plan is included in the provisions or reversion of
provisions.

- Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset), i.e. the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage of time, is recognised under Interest
expense and similar charges (Interest and similar income if it constitutes income) in the income
statement.

- The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset) is recognised under Other
comprehensive income under items not reclassified to profit or loss and includes:

- Actuarial gains and losses generated in the year, arising from the differences between the previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred and from the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions.

- The return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset).

- Any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability (asset).

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits, defined as obligations to pre-retirees -taken to be those who have
ceased to render services at the entity but who, without being legally retired, continue to have economic
rights vis-a-vis the entity until they acquire the legal status of retiree-, long-service bonuses, obligations for
death of spouse or disability before retirement that depend on the employee's length of service at the entity
and other similar items, are treated for accounting purposes, where applicable, as established above for
defined benefit post-employment plans, except that actuarial gains and losses are recognised under
Provisions or reversal provisions in the income statement (see Note 23).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when there is a detailed formal plan identifying the basic changes to
be made, provided that implementation of the plan has begun, its main features have been publicly
announced or objective facts concerning its implementation have been disclosed.
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X)

y)

Income tax

The income tax expense is recognised in the income statement, except when it results from a transaction
recognised directly in equity, in which case the related tax effect is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax expense is calculated as the sum of the current tax resulting from application of the
appropriate tax rate to the taxable profit for the year (net of any deductions allowable for tax purposes),
and of the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the income statement.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities include temporary differences, which are identified as the amounts
expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their related tax bases, and tax loss and tax credit carryforwards. These amounts are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled.

The Tax assets includes the amount of all tax assets, which are broken down into current -amounts of tax
to be recovered within the next twelve months- and deferred -amounts of tax to be recovered in future
years, including those arising from tax loss or tax credit carryforwards.

Tax liabilities includes the amount of all tax liabilities (except provisions for taxes), which are broken down
into current -the amount payable in respect of the income tax on the taxable profit for the year and other
taxes in the next twelve months- and deferred -the amount of income tax payable in future years.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, except when the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and, in addition, it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences to the extent that it is considered
probable that there will be sufficient future taxable profits against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilised, and the deferred tax assets do not arise from the initial recognition (except in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable profit nor accounting
profit. Other deferred tax assets (tax loss and tax credit carryforwards) are only recognised if it is
considered probable that there will be sufficient future taxable profits against which they can be utilised.

Income and expenses recognised directly in equity are accounted for as temporary differences.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are reassessed at the reporting date in order to ascertain whether
any adjustments need to be made on the basis of the findings of the analyses performed.

Residual maturity periods and average interest rates

The analysis of the maturities of the balances of certain items in the balance sheet and the average
interest rates at the end of the reporting periods is provided in Note 48.

Statements of recognized income and expenses

This statement presents the income and expenses generated by the Bank as a result of its business
activity in the year, and a distinction is made between the income and expenses recognised in the income
statement for the year and the other income and expenses recognised directly in equity.
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Accordingly, this statement presents:

a.

b.

Profit for the year.

The net amount of the income and expenses recognised in Other comprehensive income under items
that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

The net amount of the income and expenses recognised in Other comprehensive income under items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

The income tax incurred in respect of the items indicated in b) and c) above.

Total recognised income and expense, calculated as the sum of a) to d) above.

aa) Statements of changes in total equity

This statement presents all the changes in equity, including those arising from changes in accounting
policies and from the correction of errors. Accordingly, this statement presents a reconciliation of the
carrying amount at the beginning and end of the year of all the equity items, and the changes are grouped
together on the basis of their nature into the following items:

a.

Adjustments due to changes in accounting policies and to errors: include the changes in equity arising
as a result of the retrospective restatement of the balances in the financial statements, distinguishing
between those resulting from changes in accounting policies and those relating to the correction of
errors.

Income and expense recognised in the year: includes, in aggregate form, the total of the
aforementioned items recognised in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense.

Other changes in equity: includes the remaining items recognised in equity, including, inter alia,
increases and decreases in capital, distribution of profit, transactions involving own equity instruments,
equity-instrument-based payments, transfers between equity items and any other increases or
decreases in equity.

ab)Statements of cash flows

The following terms are used in the statements of cash flows with the meanings specified:

Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, irrespective of the portfolio in
which they are classified.

The Bank classifies as cash and cash equivalents the balances recognised under Cash, cash balances
at Central Banks and other deposits on demand in the consolidated balance sheet.

Operating activities: the principal revenue-producing activities of credit institutions and other activities
that are not investing or financing activities.

Investing activities: the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not included
in cash and cash equivalents.

Financing activities: activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the equity and
liabilities that are not operating activities.
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It should be noted that there are no material differences between the cash flows relating to interest
received and interest paid and the interest received and interest paid recognised in the income statement.
Accordingly, these items are not disclosed separately in the statements of cash flows.

The amounts of these items recorded against equity are presented at their gross amount, showing their
corresponding tax effect under the heading Income tax in said statement.

The state presents separately the items by nature, grouping them in those that, according to the
accounting standards of application, will not be subsequently reclassified to results and those that will be
subsequently reclassified to results when the requirements established by the corresponding accounting
standards are met.

3. Santander Group

a)

b)

Banco Santander, S.A. and international Group structure.

The growth of the Group in the last decades has led the Bank to also act, in practice, as a holding entity of
the shares of the various companies in its Group, and its results are becoming progressively less
representative of the performance and earnings of the Group. Therefore, each year the Bank determines
the amount of the dividends to be distributed to its shareholders on the basis of the consolidated net profit,
while maintaining the Group's traditionally high level of capitalisation and taking into account that the
transactions of the Bank and of the rest of the Group are managed on a consolidated basis
(notwithstanding the allocation to each company of the related net worth effect).

At international level, the various banks and other subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the Group
are integrated in a corporate structure comprising various holding companies which are the ultimate
shareholders of the banks and subsidiaries abroad.

The purpose of this structure, all of which is controlled by the Bank, is to optimise the international
organisation from the strategic, economic, financial and tax standpoints, since it makes it possible to define
the most appropriate units to be entrusted with acquiring, selling or holding stakes in other international
entities, the most appropriate financing method for these transactions and the most appropriate means of
remitting the profits obtained by the Group's various operating units to Spain.

The Appendices provide relevant data on the consolidated Group companies and on the companies
accounted for using the equity method.

Acquisitions and disposals

Following is a summary of the main acquisitions and disposals of ownership interests in the share capital
of other entities and other significant corporate transactions performed by the Bank in the last two years:

i. Sale of Altamira Asset Management

On 21 November 2013, the Bank announced that it had reached a preliminary agreement with Apollo
European Principal Finance Fund Il, a fund managed by subsidiaries of Apollo Global Management, LLC,
for the sale of the platform for managing the loan recovery activities of Banco Santander, S.A. in Spain and
for managing and marketing the properties relating to this activity (Altamira Asset Management, S.L.).

On 3 January 2014, the Bank announced that it had sold 85% of the share capital of Altamira Asset
Management, S.L. to Altamira Asset Management Holdings, S.L., an investee of Apollo European Principal
Finance Fund I, for EUR 664 million, giving rise to a net gain of EUR 385 million, which was recognised at
its gross amount under Gains/(losses) on disposal of assets not classified as non-current assets held for
sale in the consolidated income statement for 2014.
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Following this transaction, the Bank retained the aforementioned property assets and loan portfolio on its
balance sheet, while management of these assets is carried out from the platform owned by Apollo.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, part of the portfolio of real estate assets are not managed by Altamira
Asset Management, but by Aktua Soluciones Financieras, a company owned by 85% of Lindorff, and 15%
by Banco Santander.

ii. Carfinco Financial Group.

On 16 September 2014, the Bank announced that it had reached an agreement to purchase the listed
Canadian company Carfinco Financial Group Inc. (“Carfinco”), a company specialising in vehicle financing.

In order to acquire Carfinco, Santander Holding Canada Inc. was incorporated, a company 96.4% owned
by Banco Santander, S.A. and 3.6% owned by certain members of the former management group. On 6
March 2015, all of Carfinco was acquired through the aforementioned holding company for EUR 209
million, giving rise to goodwill of EUR 162 million.

iii. Metrovacesa

On June 21, Banco Santander hereby reached an agreement with Merlin Properties, SOCIMI, S.A,,
together with the other shareholders of Metrovacesa, S.A., for the integration in Merlin group, following the
total spin-off of Metrovacesa, S.A., of Metrovacesa, S.A. property rental asset business in Merlin
Properties, SOCIMI, S.A. and Metrovacesa, S.A. residential rental business in Metrovacesa, S.A. current
subsidiary, Testa Residencial SOCIMI, S.A. (before, Testa Residencial, S.L.) The other assets of
Metrovacesa, S.A. not integrated in Merlin group as a result of the integration, consisting of a residual
group of land assets for development and subsequent lease, will be transferred to a newly created
company wholly owned by the current shareholders of Metrovacesa, S.A. (Note 13).

Regarding the General Meeting of shareholders of Merlin Properties, SOCIMI, S.A. and Metrovacesa S.A.
on 15 September, 2016 where not only the operation was not approved.

Subsequently, on 20 of October 2016, the deed of total division of Metrovacesa, S.A. was granted in
favour of the mentioned companies, and such deed was filed in the Commercial Register on 26 of October
2016.

As a result of the integration, Santander Group has increased its participation to 16,40% of the equity
capital of Merlin Properties, SOCIMI, S.A., 34,52% of direct participation in the equity capital of Testa
Residential SOCIMI, S.A. and 52,50% in Metrovacesa Promocion y Arrendamiento, S.A.

The impact of this operation on the Bank results, is marginal.
Off-shore entities

At the reporting date, according to current Spanish regulation, the Group has four subsidiaries resident in
off-shore territories. During the financial year 2016 six subsidiaries have been liquidated, and one
subsidiary is in process of being liquidated. Moreover, in the following two years, another subsidiary with
reduced activity is expected to be terminated.

Following these planned disposals, the Group would have two substantially inactive off-shore subsidiaries
in Jersey and the Isle of Man:
- Whitewick Limited (Jersey), an inactive company.

- ALIL Services Limited (Isle of Man), currently with substantially reduced activity of services.
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The individual results of the two subsidiaries listed above, calculated in accordance with local accounting
principles, are shown in the Appendices to these notes to the consolidated financial statements together
with other data thereon.

These two subsidiaries contributed a profit of approximately EUR 0.5 million to the Group's consolidated
profit in 2016.

Also, the Group has five branches: three in the Cayman Islands, one in the Isle of Man and one in Jersey.
These branches report to, and consolidate their balance sheets and income statements with, their
respective foreign head quarters.

Also, the Group manages from Brazil a segregated portfolio company called Santander Brazil Global
Investment Fund SPC in the Cayman Islands, and manages from the United Kingdom a protected cell
company in Guernsey called Guaranteed Investment Products 1 PCC Limited. The Group also has,
directly or indirectly, few financial investments located in tax havens including Olivant Limited in Guernsey.

The aforementioned entities have a total of 106 employees as of December 2016.

The Group also has four subsidiaries domiciled in off-shore territories that are not considered to be off-
shore entities since they are tax residents in, and operate exclusively from, the UK (one of these
subsidiaries is expected to be liquidated in 2017).

Spain signed information exchange agreements with Jersey, Guernsey and the Isle of Man in 2015, that
are expected to enter into force in 2017. In addition, it is expected to sign in the future with the Cayman
Islands. All these territories will no longer have the status of tax havens for the purposes of Spanish
legislation at the time these agreements enter into force and, therefore, the Group would not maintain any
entity resident in offshore territories.

Moreover, at the reporting date, these four jurisdictions comply with OECD standards on transparency and
exchange of information for fiscal purposes, since:

e The first round of evaluations of the Global Forum have been successfully passed in terms of
their level of fiscal transparency and the effective application of the exchange of information on
request (EOIR standard).

e They have committed to implement the automatic exchange of information AEOI standard and its
Common Reporting Standard (CRS) exchange mechanism, with the first exchange of information
expected in 2017.

e They have also acceded to the Convention on Mutual Administrative Assistance in Tax Matters
(amended by the 2010 Protocol).

The OECD plans to publish a new list of non-cooperative tax territories in the summer of 2017.

The European Commission is also working to develop a first common EU list of non-cooperative tax
jurisdictions, to be published before the end of 2017. The EU will work closely with the OECD in drawing
up the final list, considering among other aspects, the evaluation by this organisation of the transparency
standards of the jurisdictions.

The Group has established appropriate procedures and controls (risk management, supervision,
verification and review plans and periodic reports) to prevent reputational and legal risk at these entities.
Also, the Group has continued to implement its policy of reducing the number of off-shore units. In addition,
the annual accounts of the Group's offshore units are audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers member firms in
2016 (Deloitte in 2015 and 2014).
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d) Group consolidated balance sheet, income statement, statement of recognised
income and expenses, statement of changes in total equity and cash-flow statement

The Group's consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2016 and 2015 and the consolidated income
statements, consolidated statements of recognised income and expense, consolidated statements of
changes in total equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended are as follows:

Santander Group — Consolidated balance sheets — (millions of euros)

ASSETS 2016 2015 (*)
CASH, CASH BALANCES AT CENTRAL BANKS AND OTHERS DEPOSITS ON DEMAND 76,454 77,751
FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING 148,187 146,346
Derivatives 72,043 76,724
Equity instruments 14,497 18,225
Debt instruments 48,922 43,964
Loans and advances 12,725 7,433
Central banks - -
Credit institutions 3,221 1,352
Customers 9,504 6,081
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 38,145 34,026
FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 31,609 45,043
Equity instruments 546 630
Debt instruments 3,398 3,717
Loans and advances 27,665 40,696
Central banks - -
Credit institutions 10,069 26,403
Customers 17,596 14,293
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 2,025 -
FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 116,774 122,036
Equity instruments 5,487 4,849
Debt instruments 111,287 117,187
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 23,980 26,742
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES 840,004 836,156
Debt instruments 13,237 10,907
Loans and advances 826,767 825,249
Central banks 27,973 17,337
Credit institutions 35,424 37,438
Customers 763,370 770,474
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 7,994 1,697
INVESTMENTS HELD-TO-MATURITY 14,468 4,355
Memorandum items: lent or delivered as guarantee with disposal or pledge rights 2,489 -
HEDGING DERIVATIVES 10,377 7,727
CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLIO HEDGES
OF INTEREST RATE RISK 1,481 1,379
INVESTMENTS 4,836 3,251
Joint ventures companies 1,594 1,592
Associated companies 3,242 1,659
REINSURANCE ASSETS 331 331
TANGIBLE ASSETS 23,286 25,320
Property, plant and equipment: 20,770 19,335
For own use 7,860 7,949
Leased out under an operating lease 12,910 11,386
Investment property: 2,516 5,985
Of which Leased out under an operating lease 1,567 4,777
Memorandum items:acquired in financial lease 115 195
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 29,421 29,430
Goodwill 26,724 26,960
Other intangible assets 2,697 2,470
TAX ASSETS 27,678 27,814
Current tax assets 6,414 5,769
Deferred tax assets 21,264 22,045
OTHER ASSETS 8,447 7,675
Insurance contracts linked to pensions 269 299
Inventories 1,116 1,013
Other 7,062 6,363
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 5,772 5,646
TOTAL ASSETS 1,339,125 1,340,260

(*) Presented for conmparison purposes only
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Santander Group — Consolidated balance sheet statement (millions of euros)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2016 2015 ()

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING 108.765 105.218
Derivatives 74.369 76.414
Short positions 23.005 17.362
Deposits 11.391 11.442
Central banks 1351 2178
Credit institutions 44 7
Customers 9.99 9.187
Marketable debt securities - -
Other financial liabilities - -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 40.263 54.768
Deposits 37.472 51.394
Central banks 9.112 16.486
Credit institutions 5.015 8.551
Customers 23.345 26.357
Marketable debt securities 2.791 3.373
Other financial liabilities - 1
Memorandum items:subordinated liabilities - -
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST 1.044.240 1.039.343
Deposits 791.646 795.679
Central banks 44112 38.872
Credit institutions 89.764 109.209
Customers 657.770 647.598
Marketable debt securities 226.078 222.787
Other financial liabilities 26516 20.877
Memorandum items:subordinated liabilities 19.902 21.153
HEDGING DERIVATIVES 8.156 8.937
CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLIO HEDGES OF INTEREST RISK RATE 448 174
LIABILITIES UNDER INSURANCE CONTRACTS 652 627
PROVISIONS 14.459 14.494
Provision for pensions and similar obligations 6.576 6.356
Other long term employee benefits 1.712 1.916
Provisions for taxes and other legal contingencies 2.994 2,577
Provisions for commitments and guarantees given 459 618
Other provisions 2.718 3.027
TAX LIABILITIES 8.373 7.725
Current tax liabilities 2.679 2.160
Deferred tax liabilities 5.694 5.565
OTHER LIABILITIES 11.070 10.221
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.236.426 1.241.507
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 105.977 102.402
CAPITAL 7.291 7.217
Called up paid capital 7.291 7.217
Unpaid capital which has been called up - -
Memorandum items: uncalled up capital - -
SHARE PREMIUM 44.912 45.001
EQUITY INSTRUMENTS ISSUED OTHER THAN CAPITAL - -
Equity of financial i - -
Other equity instruments - -
OTHER EQUITY ISNTRUMENT 240 214
ACCUMULATED RETAINS 49.953 46.429
REVALUATION RESERVES - -
OTHER RESERVES (949) (669)
(-) OWN SHARES 7) (210)
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PARENT 6.204 5.966
(-) DIVIDENS (1.667) (1.546)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (15.039) (14.362)
ITEMS NOT RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS (3.933) (3.166)
Actuarial gains or (-) losses on defined benefit pension plans (3.931) (3.165)
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - -
Other recognised income and expense of investments in subsidaries, joint ventures and associates @ 1)
Other valuation adjustments - -
ITEMS THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS (11.106) (11.196)
Hedge of net investments in foreign operations (Effective portion) (4.925) (3.597)
Exchange differences (8.070) (8.383)
Hedging derivatives. Cash flow hedges (Effective portion) 469 171
Financial assets available-for-sale 1571 844
Debt instruments 423 98
Equity instruments 1.148 746
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - -
Other recognised income and expense of investments in subsidaries, joint ventures and associates (151) (231)
NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST 11.761 10.713
Other comprehensive income (853) (1.227)
Others items 12.614 11.940
EQUITY 102.699 98.753
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1.339.125 1.340.260

MEMORANDUM ITEMS
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 44.434 39.834
CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS 231.962 221738

(*) Presented for conmparison purposes only
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Consolidated statement of income (millions of euros)

2016 2015(*)

Interest income 55,156 57,198
Interest expense (24,067) (24,386)
Net interest income 31,089 32,812
Dividend income 413 455
Share of results of entities accounted for using the equity method 444 375
Commission income 12,943 13,042
Commission expense (2,763) (3,009)
Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 869 1,265
Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading, net 2,456 (2,312)
Gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, net 426 325
Gains or losses from hedge accounting, net (23) (48)
Exchange differences, net (1,627) 3,156
Other operating income 1,919 1,971
Other operating expenses (1,977) (2,235)
Income from assets under insurance and reinsurance contracts 1,900 1,096
Expenses from liabilities under insurance and reinsurance contracts (1,837) (998)
Gross income 44,232 45,895
Administrative expenses (18,737) (19,302)
Staff costs (11,004) (11,107)
Other general administrative expenses (7,733) (8,195)
Depreciation and amortisation cost (2,364) (2,418)
Provisions or reversal of provisions (2,508) (3,106)
Impairment or reversal of impairment at financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss, net (9,626) (10,652)
Financial assets measured at cost (52) (228)
Financial assets available-for-sale 11 (230)
Loans and receivables (9,557) (10,194)
Held-to-maturity investments (28) -
Profit from operations 10,997 10,417
Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, net 17 1)
Impairment on non-financial assets, net (123) (1,091)
Tangible assets (55) (128)
Intangible assets (61) (701)
Others (@) (262)
Gains or losses on non financial assets and investments, net 30 112
Negative badwill recognised in results 22 283
Gains or losses on non-current assets held for sale classified as discontinued operations (141) (173)
Profit or loss before tax from continuing operations 10,768 9,547
Tax expense or income from continuing operations (3,282) (2,213)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 7,486 7,334
Profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations - -
Profit for the period 7,486 7,334
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 1,282 1,368
Profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent 6,204 5,966
Earnings per share

Basic 0.41 0.40
Diluted 0.41 0.40

(*) Presented for conmparison purposes only
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Consolidated statements of recognised income and expense (millions of euros)

2016 2015 (*)
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 7,486 7,334
OTHER RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE (303) (4,076)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (806) 445
Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit pension plans (1,172) 695
Non-current assets held for sale - -
Other recognised income and expense of investments in subsidaries, joint ventures and associates @) -
Other valuation adjustments - -
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 367 (250)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 503 (4,521)
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations (Effective portion) (1,329) 27)
Revaluation gain (losses) (1,330) 27)
Amounts transferred to income statement 1 -
Other reclassifications - -
Exchanges differences 676 (3,518)
Revaluation gain (losses) 682 (3,518)
Amounts transferred to income statement (6) -
Other reclassifications - -
Cash flow hedges (Effective portion) 495 (91)
Revaluation gain (losses) 6,231 (105)
Amounts transferred to income statement (5,736) 14
Transferred to initial carrying amount of hedged items - -
Other reclassifications - -
Financial assets available-for-sale 1,326 (1,216)
Revaluation gains (losses) 2,192 (555)
Amounts transferred to income statement (866) (661)
Other reclassifications - -
Non-current assets held for sale - -
Revaluation gains (losses) - -
Amounts transferred to income statement - -
Other reclassifications - -
Share of other recognised income and expense of investments 80 (147)
Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss (745) 478
Total recognised income and expenses 7,183 3,258
Attributable to non-controlling interests 1,656 796
Attributable to the parent 5,627 2,462

(*) Presented for conmparison purposes only
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Santander Group - Consolidated statements of changes in total equity (millions of euros)

Non-Controlling interest

Other Parent Other Other
instruments Other (-) Own result comprehensive | comprehensive
Share (Other than equity Accumulated | Revaluation [ Other Equity for the - income income Others
Capital | premium capital) instruments earnings reserves reserves | instruments | period | Dividends | accumulated accumulated | elements | Total

Balance as at 31/12/15 (*) 7,217 45,001 - 214 46,429 - (669) (210)| 5966|  (1546) (14,362) @227)| 11,940 98,753
Adjustments due to errors - - - - - - - - - ] - - ] -
Adjustments due to changes in accounting

policies - - - - - - - - - 1 - - 1 -
Adjusted balance as

at 31/12/15 (*) 7,217 45,001 214 46,429 - (669) (210) 5,966 (1,546) (14,362) (1,227) 11,940| 98,753
Total recognised income and expense - - - - - i - - 6,204 - (677) 374 1,282 7,183
Other changes in equity 74 (89) 26 3,524 1 (280) 203| (5,966) (121 - - (608) | (3,237)
Issuance of ordinary shares 74 (89) - - - - 15 - - - - - 534 534
Issuance of preferred shares - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Issuance of other financial instruments - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Maturity of other financial instruments - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Conversion of financial liabilities into

equity - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Capital reduction B - - - - - - - - - - - (22) (22)
Dividends - - - - (722) - - - - (1,667) - - (800)| (3,189)
Purchase of equity instruments - - - - - - - (1,380) - - - - -] (1,380)
Dispossal of equity instruments - - - - - - 15 1,583 - - - - - 1,598
Transfer from equity to liabilities - - - - - - - - - - B - B B
Transfer from liabilities to equity - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers between equity items - - - - 4,246 - 174 -1 (5,966) 1,546 - - - -
Increases (decreases) due to
business combinations _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ | _ _ (197) (197)
Share-based payment - - - (79) - - - - - ] - - - (79)
Others increases or (-) decreases of the

equity - - - 105 - - (484) - - 1 - - (123) (502)
Balance at 31/12/16 7,291 44,912 240 49,953 - (949) (M|  6204]  (1,667) (15,039) (853)| 12,614 102,699

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.
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Non-Controlling interest

Other Parent Other Other
instruments (-) Own result comprehensive | comprehensive
Share (Other than | Other equity | Accumulated | Revaluation | Other Equity for the - income income Others
Capital [ premium capital) instruments earnings reserves reserves | instruments | period | Dividends [ accumulated accumulated | elements [ Total

Balance as at 31/12/14(%) 6,292 38,611 - 265 41,860 - (700) )| 5816 (471) (10,858) (655) 9,564 89,714
Adjustments due to errors - - - - - - - - ] | - - i -
Adjustments due to changes in

accounting policies - - - - - - - - E | - - - -
Adjusted balance as

at 31/12/14 (*) 6,292 38,611 - 265 41,860 - (700) (10) 5,816 (471) (10,858) (655) 9,564 89,714
Total recognised income and expense - - - - - - - - 5,966 | (3,504) (572) 1,368 3,258
Other changes in equity 925 6,390 - (51) 4,569 - 31 (200)[ (5,816) (1,075) - - 1,008 5,781
Issuance of ordinary shares 925 6,390 - - - - 120 - i - - - 320 7,755
Issuance of preferred shares - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Issuance of other financial instruments - - - - - - - - - - - 890) 890
Maturity of other financial instruments - - - - - - - - - - - i -
Conversion of financial liabilities into

equity - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Capital reduction p - - - - - - - - - - (20) (20)
Dividends - - - - (673) - - - (1,546) - - (461)| (2,680)
Purchase of equity instruments - - - - - - (3,225) - - - - - (38,225)
Dispossal of equity instruments - - - - - - 16 3,025 - - - - - 3,041
Transfer from equity to liabilities - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer from liabilities to equity - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers between equity items - - - - 5,242 - 103 -| (5,816) 471 - - - -
Increases (decreases) due to
business combinations _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 761 761
Share-based payment - - - (188) - - - - - - - - 107 (81)
Others increases or (-) decreases of the

equity - - - 137 - - (208) - - - - - (589) (660)
Balance at 31/12/15 (*) 7,217 45,001 - 214 46,429 - (669) (210)| 5,966 (1,546) (14,362) (1,227)] 11,940 98,753

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.
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Santander Group — Consolidated statements of cash flows (millions of euros)

2016 2015(*)

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 21,823 5,678
Consolidated Profit for the year 7,486 7,334
Adjustments made to obtain the cahs flows from operating activities 22,032 20,614
Depreciation and amortisation charge 2,364 2,418
Other adjustments 19,668 18,196
Net increase/(decrease) in operating assets 17,966 69,587
Financial assets held-for-trading 6,234 866
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (12,882) 2,376
Financial assets available-for-sale (7,688) 15,688
Loans and receivables 27,938 53,880
Other operating assets 4,364 (3,223)
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities 13,143 49,522
Liabilities held-for-trading financial 8,032 (2,655)
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (13,450) (8,011)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 21,765 58,568
Other operating liabilities (3,204) 1,620
Income tax recovered/(paid) (2,872) (2,205)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (13,764) (6,218)
Payments 18,204 10,671
Tangible assets 6,572 7,664
Intangible assets 1,768 1,572
Investments 48 82
Subsidiaries and other business units 474 1,353
Non-current assets held for sale and associated liabilities - -
Held-to-maturity investments 9,342 -
Other proceeds related to investing activities - -
Proceeds 4,440 4,453
Tangible assets 2,608 2,386
Intangi